
City of Bethel 
         P.O. BOX 1388 
    Bethel, Alaska 99559 

      Phone: 907- 543-2047 
         Fax: 907-543-3781 

Regular City Council Meeting 
Tuesday, February 9, 2016 

    6:30 P.M. 
Council Chambers; Bethel, Alaska 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
February 9, 2016 – 6:30 pm 
City Hall 300 State Highway, Bethel, AK 
City of Bethel Council Chambers 

Rick Robb 
Mayor 
Term Expires 2017 
543-1879 
rrobb@cityofbethel.net 

Byron Maczynski 
Vice-Mayor 
Term Expires 2016 
545-0970 
bmaczynski@cityofbethel.net 

Leif Albertson 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2017 
543-2819 
lalbertson@cityofbethel.net 

Chuck Herman 
Council Member  
Term Expires 2016 
545-5394 
cherman@cityofbethel.net 

Zach Fansler 
Council Member  
Term Expires 2016 
545-3300 
zfansler@cityofbethel.net 

Nikki C. Hoffman 
Council Member  
Term Expires 2017 
545-6653 
nhoffman@cityofbethel.net 

Alisha Welch 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2017 
545-6026 
arwelch@cityofbethel.net 

Ann Capela 
City Manager 
543-2047 
acapela@cityofbethel.net 

Lori Strickler 
City Clerk 
543-1384 
lstrickler@cityofbethel.net 

Patty Burley 
City Attorney 

Mary Sattler 
Lobbyist 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL
IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD – Five minutes per person
V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA AND REGULAR AGENDA 

VI. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES
a) *1-19-2016 Special Meeting Minutes
b) *1-26-2016 Regular Meeting Minutes

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE
a) Public Safety and Transportation Commission
b) Port Commission
c) Planning Commission
d) Parks, Recreation, Aquatic Health And Safety Center Committee
e) Finance Committee
f) Energy Committee
g) Public Works Committee
h) Marijuana Advisory Committee
i) Non Standing Committee Reports

VIII. SPECIAL ORDERS OF BUSINESS
a) United Pools Presentation (Mayor Robb)
b) Annual Update From Bethel Friends Of Canine (Mayor Robb)

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
a) Public Hearing On Ordinance 15-21: Amending Bethel Municipal Code 5.30,

Taxicab, River Taxi, Limousine And Bus Permits, To Requires Video Camera
Surveillance System And Global Positioning System Capabilities (Council
Member Springer)

b) Public Hearing Of Budget Ordinance 15-14 (c): Fiscal Year 2016 Budget
Amendments- Cash Match of $250,000 For The Ridgecrest Drive Project (City
Manager Capela)

c) Public Hearing Of Ordinance 16-02: Property Acquisition From The
Department Of Military And Veterans Affairs, Lot 15, USS 4117 (City Manager
Capela)

d) Wind Turbine Maintenance Contract With Northern Power (City Manager
Capela)

X. NEW BUSINESS 
a)  *Resolution 16-04: Providing Support To The State’s Funding For Public 

Broadcasting (Vice-Mayor Maczynski) 

Agenda posted on February 3, 2016, at City Hall, AC Co., Swanson’s, and the Post Office. 

_________________________      
Lori Stickler, City Clerk 
(Items on the agenda noted with an asterisk (*) are considered the consent agenda. 
All Resolutions noted with an asterisk (*) will automatically be adopted on the consent agenda unless removed from the consent agenda by Council.  
Ordinances introduced with an asterisk (*) on the consent agenda will automatically be introduced and set for Public Hearing February 23, 2016) 

P4
P7

P27 

P42

P72

P82

P92

1

mailto:rrobb@cityofbethel.net
mailto:bmaczynski@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lalbertson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:cherman@cityofbethel.net
mailto:zfansler@cityofbethel.net
mailto:nhoffman@cityofbethel.net
mailto:arwelch@cityofbethel.net
mailto:acapela@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lstrickler@cityofbethel.net


City Council Meeting Agenda 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
February 9, 2016 – 6:30 pm 
City Hall 300 State Highway, Bethel, AK 
City of Bethel Council Chambers 

b) *Resolution 16-05: Request To The Army Corps Of Engineers, Additional 
Time To Review The Donlin Gold Environmental Impact Statement (Council 
Member Fansler) 

c) *Resolution 16-06: To Approve The City Of Bethel’s Application To The Fiscal 
Year 2016 State Homeland Security Program (City Manager Capela) 

d) *Resolution 16-07: Supporting The State Of Alaska Public Employees 
Retirement System Reform (Mayor Robb) 

e) *Resolution 16-08: Certifying The City of Bethel Suffered Significant Effects 
During The Program Base Year From Fisheries Business Activities That 
Occurred Within The FMA 6: Lower Kuskokwim Fisheries Management Area 
(City Manager Capela) 

f) *Introduction Of Budget Ordinance 15-14 (d): Amending The Fiscal Year 
2016 Budget For Water And Sewer Pump Replacement And ProDev 
Professional Services Contract (City Manager Capela) 

g) *AM 16-08: Appointment Of Courtney Trammell To The Marijuana Advisory 
Committee (Mayor Robb) 

h) AM 16-09: Directing Administration To Prepare A Budget Modification And A
Plan Of Action For The Implementation Of A Fleet Tracking System On Ten 
City Vehicles (Council Member Albertson)   

i) AM 16-10: Approve The Selection Of Project Development Associates To
Serve As Project Manager For The Relocation Of The Existing Port Office And 
Construction Of A New Port Office (City Manager Capela) 

j) AM 16-11: Approve The Purchase Of 50 Drums Of Protherm 720 Heavy Duty
Coolant And Heat Transfer Fluid From Garness Industrial, Inc. (City Manager 
Capela) 

k) AM 16-12: Approving The Contract With ProDev For Request For Proposal
Development For The Management Of The Pool Facility (City Manager 
Capela) 

l) Determination Of Action Regarding Bethel Spirits Package Store License
Application # 5447 And (Mayor Robb) 

m) Determination Of Action Regarding Fili’s Restaurant Eating Place License
Application #5445 (Mayor Robb) 

n) *Personal Time Off Request For City Attorney, March 7, 2016 (Mayor Robb) 
XI. MAYOR’S REPORT

XII. MANAGER’S REPORTS
XIII. CLERK’S REPORT
XIV. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS
XV. ADJOURNMENT

Agenda posted on February 3, 2016, at City Hall, AC Co., Swanson’s, and the Post Office. 

_________________________      
Lori Stickler, City Clerk 
(Items on the agenda noted with an asterisk (*) are considered the consent agenda. 
All Resolutions noted with an asterisk (*) will automatically be adopted on the consent agenda unless removed from the consent agenda by Council.  
Ordinances introduced with an asterisk (*) on the consent agenda will automatically be introduced and set for Public Hearing February 23, 2016) 

P93

P94

P96

P98

P99

P101

P102

P105

P118

P132

P142

2



Approval of the Meeting Minutes 

3



Special Meeting 
January 19, 2016 

I. CALL TO ORDER   

A Special Meeting of the Bethel City Council was held on January 19, 2016 at 6:30 p.m., in 
the council chambers, Bethel, Alaska. 

Mayor Richard Robb called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANC

III. ROLL CALL

IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD

No one present to be heard.  

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Main Motion: Approve the Agenda 
Moved by: Hoffman 

Seconded by: Herman 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Herman  Hoffman 

Opposed:  0 

City Council Meeting 
City of Bethel, Alaska 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following members were present: 

 Mayor Rick Robb  Council Member  Leif Albertson 

 Vice-Mayor  Byron Maczynski (arrived 
 at 6:45p) 

 Council Member Nikki Hoffman 

Absent: 

 Council Member Alisha Welch  Council Member Chuck Herman 

 Council Member Zach Fansler 

 Also in attendance were the following: 

 City Attorney Patty Burley  City Clerk Lori Strickler 

 City Manager Ann Capela  Assistant To City Clerk Adriane Welch 

City Council Meeting Minutes City of Bethel, Alaska 
January 19, 2015 

1 

4



 

Main Motion: 
Amend the agenda to move Executive Session to before the 
New Business.  

Moved by: Herman 
Seconded by: Hoffman 

Action: 
In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 4-0 
 Robb   Albertson   Herman   Hoffman   

Opposed: 0 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
Item A – AS 44.62.310 (C) 1: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which Would 
Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity –Legal Liability 
For The YK Fitness Center 
 

Main Motion: 

AS 44.62.310 (C) 1: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of 
Which Would Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances 
Of The Public Entity –Legal Liability For The YK Fitness Center 
Those participating in the Executive Session will be the Council 
Members, City Attorney Burley, City Manager Capela, and City 
Clerk Strickler. 

Moved by: Herman 
Seconded by: Hoffman  

Action: 
In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 4-0  
 Robb   Albertson   Herman   Hoffman   

Opposed: 0 
 
Vice-Mayor Maczynski arrived at 6:45p.  
Council Member Herman departed at 7:03p. 
 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Item A – Yukon Kuskokwim Aquatic Health And Safety Center Operating Contract.  
 

Main Motion: Direct Administration to draft an RFP for Pool Operations.  
Moved by: Hoffman 

Seconded by: Maczynski 
Action: 

In favor: 
Motion carries by a vote of 4-0 

 Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Hoffman   
Opposed: 0 

 

 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 19, 2015 
 

2 

5



Main Motion: Direct Administration to draft an RFP for Pool Operations.  
Moved by: Hoffman  

Seconded by: Maczynski 
Action: 

In favor: 
Motion carries by a vote of 4-0 

 Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Hoffman   
Opposed: 0 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Main Motion: Adjourn. 

Moved by: Maczynski 
Seconded by: Hoffman  

Action: 
In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 4-0 
 Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Hoffman   

Opposed:   0 
 
 
Council adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 

 
 
_________________________ 
Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 19, 2015 
 

3 

6



Regular Meeting 
January 26, 2016 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER   

 
A Regular Meeting of the Bethel City Council was held on January 26, 2016 at 6:30 p.m., 
in the council chambers, Bethel, Alaska. 
 
Mayor Richard Robb called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  
 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
III. ROLL CALL 

 
IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD  

 
Mary Nanuwaic – Stated there are many communities in Alaska banning the sale of 
marijuana. Encouraged the community to be informed on the issue.  
 
Council Member Welch arrived at 6:32p.  
 
Dave Trantham Jr. – Stated he is surprised, the internal investigation for the City still 
has not been released to the public; he encouraged the Council to release the report.  
Reflected back to 1946 when he was stationed in Nome Alaska with the US Air Force; 
suggested the City of Bethel is like an airplane, the City must be balanced and it isn’t. 
Provided reference to the City Manager’s “big picture” budget document. Stated the 
City’s health care program for the City employees is substantially in dept, along with 
leased property. Suggested the City cut 10-52-541, City Council Training and Travel.  
 

          City Council Meeting  
       City of Bethel, Alaska 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following members were present: 

     Mayor Rick Robb (participated by telephone)      Council Member Alisha Welch (arrived after roll call) 

     Vice-Mayor Leif Albertson      Vice-Mayor Byron Maczynski     

     Council Member Chuck Herman      Council Member Zach Fansler 

     Council Member Nikki Hoffman  

 Also in attendance were the following: 

     City Attorney Patty Burley      City Clerk Lori Strickler 

     City Manager Ann Capela      Assistant To City Clerk Adriane Welch 

1 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 26, 2016 

7



Fritz Charles- As a resident of Bethel, off and on since 1995; agreed with Mr. 
Trantham with regard to a balance budget. When the City isn’t paying their 
employees appropriately, the employee isn’t going to do a good job for the City and 
not want to be there. Stopped working for the City a few years back but recently 
applied for a vacant City position however turn down the job when offered the job at 
$19 per hour. If you take care of the employee, they will take care of you.  
 

V. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA 
 

Main Motion: Approve the Consent and Regular Agenda. 
Moved by: Herman 

Seconded by: Fansler 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch 
Opposed:  0 

 

Main Motion: 
Postpone Item B under Unfinished Business, Public Hearing of 
Ordinance 15-21.  

Moved by: Hoffman  
Seconded by: Fansler 

Action: Motion does not carry by a vote of  0-7 
In favor: 0 

Opposed:  Herman  Albertson   Fansler    Robb   Maczynski   Hoffman   Welch 
 
Removal from 

the Consent: Introduction of Budget Ordinance 15-14.  
Moved by: Hoffman  

 
Removal from 

the Consent: Resolution 16-03.  
Moved by: Robb 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF THE MEETING MINUTES 

 
Item A – Regular City Council Meeting January 12, 2016 
 
Item B – Special City Council Meeting January 18, 2016 

Passed on the consent agenda. 
 

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
 
Public Safety and Transportation Commission –  
Council Representative, Chuck Herman – 

2 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 26, 2016 

8



Discussed possible improvements to the Police and Fire Department makeup. More 
information will be presented to the Council at a later meeting.  
The Commission provided a recommendation to the Council to not pass Ordinance 15-21.  
 
Port Commission –  
Council Representative, Alisha Welch – 
A meeting was not held due to a lack of a quorum.  
 
Planning Commission –  
Council Representative, Nikki Hoffman – 
Donlin Gold EIS was discussed. The Commission requested that any involvement with 
Donlin Gold be filtered through the Planning Commission. The Commission also suggested 
requesting the Army Corps of Engineers extend the public hearing period.  
Consideration of Bethel becoming a borough.  
Discussed the possible updating of the zoning map.  
 

Main Motion: 
Refer to the Planning Commission the review of the Housing 
Development procedures and codes.  

Moved by: Herman 
Seconded by: Welch 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 
In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch 

Opposed:  0 
 
Parks and Recreation Aquatic Health and Safety Center Committee –  
Council Representative, Richard Robb – 
The Committee has not held a meeting since the last City Council meeting.  
 
Finance Committee –  
Council Representative, Leif Albertson – 
Potential areas of action for cost savings within the City as well as revenue options to 
include Health Insurance as well as city vehicles.  
 
Energy Committee –  
Council Representative, Zach Falser– 
A meeting has not been held since the last City Council meeting. 
 
Public Works Committee –  
Zef Lakahni, Public Works Director –  
The boardwalk between the College and the Hospital was discussed. A 
recommendation was prepared and submitted to the Council.  
The institutional corridor project, dredging of the lagoon, lighting at different locations 
in the community as well as the advertisement of the vacant positions was discussed.  
 

3 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 26, 2016 

9



Marijuana Advisory Committee –  
Council Representative, Zack Fansler – 
A meeting was not held due to a lack of a quorum.  
 
Non-Standing Committee –  
Nothing to report.  

 
VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
Council Member Hoffman declared a conflict of interest on Resolution 15-18 and the 
ONC request for $50,000 for in-kind donation.  
 
Mayor Robb ruled, Council Member Nikki Hoffman does have a conflict of interest on 
the two issues.  
 
Council Member Hoffman stepped down from the Council bench.  
 
Item A – Resolution 15-18: Authorization To Transfer Obsolete Used Furniture And 
Equipment Located At The Bethel Senior Center To ONC Senior Center Program. 
 

Main Motion: Approve Resolution 15-18. 
Moved by: Herman 

Seconded by: Fansler 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Welch 
Opposed:  0 

 
Primary 

Amendment: 
Amend Resolution 15-18 to reflect that provided by the City 
Attorney.   

Moved by: Herman 
Seconded by: Welch 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 
In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Welch 

Opposed:  0 
 
Council Member Hoffman returned to the Council bench.  
 
Item B – Public Hearing On Ordinance 15-21: Amending Bethel Municipal Code 5.30, 
Taxicab, River Taxi, Limousine And Bus Permits, To Require Video Camera 
Surveillance System And Global Positioning System Capabilities. 
 
Vice-Mayor Maczynski opened the public hearing.  

No one was present to be heard.  

4 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 26, 2016 

10



Vice-Mayor Maczynski closed the public hearing.  
 

Main Motion: Postpone.  
Moved by: Hoffman 

Seconded by: Fansler 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-1 

In favor:  Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch 
Opposed:  Robb   

 
Item C – Public Hearing Of Ordinance 16-01: Establishing A Limited Moratorium On 
Commercial Marijuana. 
 
Vice-Mayor Maczynski opened the public hearing.  
 
Dave Trantham – Spoke in opposition to Ordinance 16-01.  
Mary Nanuwaic – Spoke in favor of Ordinance 16-01.  
Fritz Charles – Spoke in opposition to Ordinance 16-01.  
 
Vice-Mayor Maczynski closed the public hearing. 
 

Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 16-01.  
Moved by: Fansler 

Seconded by: Herman 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch 
Opposed:  0 

 
Item D – Approval Of City Manager And Two City Council Members To Travel To The 
National League Of Cities Conference, March 5-9, 2016. 
 

Main Motion: 
Approve the City Manager and to City Council members to travel 
to the National League of Cities Conference.  

Moved by: Fansler 
Seconded by: Hoffman  

Action: Motion does not carry by a vote of  2-5 
In favor:  Robb   Fansler    

Opposed:  Herman   Welch  Albertson   Hoffman   Maczynski   
 

Main Motion: 
Amend to strike “two council members” and insert “one council 
member.”  

Moved by: Fansler 
Seconded by: Robb 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-3 
In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    

Opposed:  Hoffman   Welch  Maczynski   

5 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 26, 2016 

11



 
Main Motion: Take a ten minute break. 

Moved by: Hoffman 
Seconded by: Herman  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 
In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch 

Opposed:  0 
 
Item E – Wind Turbine Maintenance Contract With Northern Power. 
 

Main Motion: Postpone.  
Moved by: Welch 

Seconded by: Hoffman 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch 
Opposed:  0 

 
IX. NEW BUSINESS 

 
Item A – Resolution 16-03: Supporting The Governor’s Budget Inclusion Of Revenue 
Sharing. 
 

Main Motion: Adopt Resolution 16-03. 
Moved by: Hoffman 

Seconded by: Herman 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch 
Opposed:  0 

 
Item B – Introduction Of Budget Ordinance 15-14 (c): Fiscal Year 2016 Budget 
Amendments- Cash Match of $250,000 For The Ridgecrest Drive Project. 
 

Main Motion: Introduce Budget Ordinance 15-14 (c).  
Moved by: Herman 

Seconded by: Fansler 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch 
Opposed:  0 

 
Item C – Introduction Of Ordinance 16-02: Property Acquisition From The Department Of 
Military And Veterans Affairs, Lot 15, USS 4117. 
 
Passed on the consent agenda.  
 

6 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 26, 2016 

12



Item D – AM 16-06: Approval Of The Mayor’s Appointment Of Kathryn Baldwin To The 
Parks, Recreation, Aquatic Health And Safety Center Committee As An Alternate 
Member. 
 
Passed on the consent agenda.  
 
Item E – AM 16-07: Justification And Approval To Contract ProDev For YK Fitness 
Center Request For Proposal And Contracting Support. 
 

Main Motion: Approve AM 16-07.  
Moved by: Robb 

Seconded by: Herman 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch 
Opposed:  0 

 
Primary 

Amendment: Adopt the amended version of AM 16-07.  
Moved by: Robb 

Seconded by: Hoffman 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 

In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch 
Opposed:  0 

 
Item F – Review of Donlin Gold Environmental Impact Study. 
 

Main Motion: 

Direct the City Administration to draft and send a letter on 
behalf of the Council to request an extension to the Army Corps 
of Engineers for the public review and comment on the Donlin 
Gold EIS.  

Moved by: Hoffman  
Seconded by: Herman 

Action: Motion does not carry by a vote of 0-7  
In favor: 0 

Opposed:  Robb   Albertson   Maczynski   Herman   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch 
Pronounced  

Main Motion: Amend to request a one year extension.  
Moved by: Hoffman 

Seconded by: Herman 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-1 

In favor:  Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch 
Opposed:  Robb   

 

7 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 26, 2016 

13



 
Item G – Personal Leave Request For City Manager. 
Passed on the consent agenda.  
 
Item H – Orutsararmiut Native Council’s Request For $50,000 for In-Kind Donation. 
 

Main Motion: 
Direct Administration to establish a budget modification for 
donation to ONC.   

Moved by: Fansler 
Seconded by:  

Action: Motion does not carry due to a lack of a second.   
 

X. MAYOR’S REPORT 
XI. MANAGER’S REPORT 
XII. CLERK’S REPORT 
XIII. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
Mayor Richard Robb – 
No comment.  
 
Vice-Mayor Byron Maczynski – 
No comment.  
 
Council Member Albertson – 
No comment.  
 
Council Member Chuck Herman – 
No comment.  
 
Council Member Zach Fansler – 
Thanked everyone for their hard work during the K300 Race. Congratulations to Pete 
Kaiser for his win.  
 
Council Member Nikki Hoffman –  
No comment.  
 
Council Member Alisha Welch – 
No comment.  
 

XIV. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

8 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 26, 2016 

14



Item A – Executive Session As Per Alaska Statutes 44.62.310: Matters, The Immediate 
Knowledge Of Which Would Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The 
Public Entity-Lease With Lower Kuskokwim School District, Kilbuck. 
 
Item B – Executive Session To Discuss The Annual Evaluation Of The City Manager As 
Per Alaska Statutes 44.62.310: Personnel Matters (Unless the Person Has Requested To 
Have The Subjects Discussed In Public) Or Subjects That Tend To Prejudice The 
Reputation And Character Of A Person. 
 

Main Motion: 

Move into Executive Session As Per Alaska Statutes 44.62.310: 
Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which Would Clearly Have 
An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity-Lease 
With Lower Kuskokwim School District, Killbuck. Those 
participating will be City Council, City Manager, City Attorney, 
and City Clerk. 
 
To Discuss The Annual Evaluation Of The City Manager As Per 
Alaska Statutes 44.62.310: Personnel Matters (Unless the Person 
Has Requested To Have The Subjects Discussed In Public) Or 
Subjects That Tend To Prejudice The Reputation And Character Of 
A Person. Those participating will be City Council and City 
Manager. 

Moved by: Fansler 
Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 
In favor:  Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch 

Opposed:  0 
 

Main Motion: 

Postpone Item B, – Executive Session To Discuss The Annual 
Evaluation Of The City Manager As Per Alaska Statutes 
44.62.310: Personnel Matters (Unless the Person Has Requested 
To Have The Subjects Discussed In Public) Or Subjects That 
Tend To Prejudice The Reputation And Character Of A Person. 

Moved by: Albertson 
Seconded by: Herman 

Action: 
In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 
 Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch 

Opposed:  0 
 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Main Motion: Adjourn 
Moved by: Herman 

Seconded by: Welch 

9 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 26, 2016 

15



Action: 
In favor: 

Motion carries by a vote of 7-0 
 Robb   Maczynski   Albertson   Herman   Fansler    Hoffman   Welch 

Opposed:  0 
 
 
Council adjourned at 10:24 p.m. 
 

 
 
_________________________ 
Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk  

10 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 26, 2016 

16



 

Reports of Standing Committees  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
Public Works Committee Minutes 
January 20, 2016 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 

I. CALL TO ORDER: 
A regular Public Works Committee Meeting was held on January 20, 2016 at the council 
chambers of the City Hall, Bethel, Alaska. The meeting was called to order at 6:45pm 
by chair, Frank Neitz. 
 
II. ROLL CALL: 
Comprising a quorum of the committee, the following were present: Frank Neitz, Scott 
Guinn, Delbert Egoak, and Joseph Klejka. 
 
Excused absence(s): Robert Champagne, Byron Maczynski, Jennifer Dobson, Donna 
Lindsey. 
 
Also Present: Public Works Director, Muzaffar Lakhani. 
 
II. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD: none 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
       MOVED BY Scott Guinn Motion to approve the agenda. 

    SECONDED BY: Joseph Klejka 
 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
MOVED BY: Joseph Klejka Motion to approve minutes of December 16, 

2015 regular meeting.  SECONDED BY: Delbert Egoak 
 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 
VI. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS: none 
 
VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
Item A-Water and Sewer Master Plan/Institutional Corridor Piped Water 
Supply Project: Dowl Engineers are working with the Yukon Kuskokiwm Heath 
Corporation (YKHC) for Hospital to connect to the piped water supply project and the 
easement acquisition for this project. Engineers are currently adjusting the plan and 
June 16, 2016 is the expected date to start construction.  
 

 
Public Works Committee Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 20, 2016 

18



 
Item B-Sewer Lagoon Request for Proposal (RFP) for Preliminary 
Engineering Report (PER) and Engineering Report (ER) for Truck Dump Site: 
The (PER) Preliminary Engineering Report for this project is expected to be submitted to 
the State this week, then the (ER) Engineering report will be submitted.  
 
Item D-Installing slip lining inside old metallic water pipes in the Bethel 
Heights subdivision- No new information presented, but suggested to keep moving 
forward on this project.  
 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Joint Committee Meeting with Parks and Pool Committee to discuss 
boardwalk removal/repair between hospital and college: 

       MOVED BY Scott Guinn Motion to amend agenda moving New 
Business item “A” to the first discussion 
 

   SECONDED BY: Joseph Klejka 

 
VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

B. Hiring Employees on social media: Committee is trying to gain more 
attention to City’s job openings via Face book. 

C. Discuss ways to make city jobs more attractive: Suggestion was made to 
make job benefits and salaries more attractive and advertise via newspaper ads 
not just local but global.  

D. Discuss recommending to the city council purchase of new water and 
sewer trucks for the Public Works Department:  City council has approved 
the purchase of one new water truck which is currently in ordering process.  

 
IX. DIRECTOR’S REPORT:  
Public Works Director, Muzaffar Lakhani reports that he will be on leave from April 28- 
2016 through June 8, 2016. The sewer Truck dump site project (PER) Preliminary 
Engineering Report and the (ER) Engineering report are moving forward. Also there was 
a shipment of anthracite that has received and the water quality has improved a lot by 
the addition of Anthracite to the filters of the City Sub WTP.  
   
X. MEMBER COMMENTS: 
Scott Guinn: no comment. 
Joseph Klejka: no comment. 
Delbert Egoak: no comment. 
Frank Neitz –:Thank you all. 
 
XI. ADJOURNMENT: 
MOVED BY: Delbert Egoak Motion to adjourn  
SECONDED BY: Scott Guinn 
 
VOTE ON Motion Carried by unanimous vote 

 
Public Works Committee Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 20, 2016 

19



 
MOTION 
 
With no further business, meeting adjourned at 7:40pm 
 
 
APPROVED THIS ______ DAY OF _____________, 2016.  
 
 
 
__________________________    ________________________ 
Pauline Boratko      Frank Neitz 
Recorder of Minutes      Chair      

 
Public Works Committee Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 
  January 20, 2016 

20



 
City of Bethel, Alaska 
Parks, Recreation, Aquatic, Health & Safety Center Committee Minutes 

January 04, 2016 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order by Michelle DeWitt at 6:00 pm. 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
Comprising a quorum of the Committee, the following were present: 
Michelle DeWitt, Judy Wasierski, Kathy Hanson, Barbara Moiser, Beverly Hoffman, Rick Robb, and 
Mary Weiss arrived at 6:07pm. 
 
Also in attendance were the following: 
       Matthew Ross, Parks & Recreation Rep 
       Ann Capela, City Manager 
       Pauline Boratko, Committee Recorder 
       Raunicka Ray, Pool Manager 
       Muzaffar Lakhani, Public Works Director 
   
        
  III. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD: 
Patty Burley- addressed concerned about Log Cabin usage for Kozy Quilters Club 
Kerri Fox- spoke in support of having used the Log Cabin for a meeting place for activities 
Eileen Hendrickson- addressed the use of the Log Cabin 
Matt Scott- addressed partnership with Health and Wellness Center with YKHC 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
MOVED BY: R. Robb Motion to approve agenda 
SECONDED BY: J. Wasierski 

VOTE ON MOTION: Unanimously approved 

 
V. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:  

 
VI. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS:  

a. Annual Committee Training with City Clerk-Lori Strickler 
 
IX.   DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORT: Matt Ross, Parks and Recreation representative reported that 
he is already getting a jump start on the 4th of July festivities and is wanting to get some of the 
responsibly to community development. Ross is also in the process of getting his Playground Safety 
Certification. Muzaffar Lakhani, Public Works Director reports that there was a meeting lasting three 
hours concerning the pool temperature and the wind turbines.  
 

MOVED BY: M. Dewitt Motion to approve the minutes 
SECONDED BY: R. Robb 
VOTE ON MOTION: Unanimously approved 

Parks, Recreation, Aquatic, Health & Safety Center Committee Minutes                    City of Bethel, Alaska 
January 04, 2016 

 
   

 
21



 
X. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  

a. Capital Fund Trails: Identification of Priority Improvements- Discussion of $270,000 be used 
to replace old board walk. A suggestion was made to have the removal of the board walk be 
in house.  

b. Pool Operations Plan: Review and Discussion-  
c. Pool Usage: Review of Usage Data- Review of the usage data was made and to gain more 

attention is suggest to work on different ways of advertisement.  
d. Pool Financial Report: Review of Updated Revenue and Expenses 
e. Corporate Discounts: Update on status of existing/new agency corporate partners- 

Committee members are working with local corporations  is currently working on a 
agreement with the Lower Kuskokwim School District (LKSD).  The Alaska Commercial 
Company (AC) is also interested in the fitness center discount.  

f. Boardwalk behind the University of Alaska -demolish old board walk and make new trail. 
  

 
XI.  NEW BUSINESS: 

a. Establish a new Dog Park-  
b. Pool Temp Strategy-  
c. Sub-Committee Report- 

 
XI. MEMBER COMMENTS: 
 
M. Weiss- No comment 
J. Wasierski- No comment 
M. Dewitt- Do I need to come for a report?  
B. Hoffman- We got a lot done.  
R.Robb- No comment 
B. Moiser- No comment 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 
MOVED BY: M. Dewitt To adjourn the meeting at 9:40 pm 
SECONDED BY: J. Wasierski 

VOTE ON MOTION Unanimously approved 
 
With no further business before the Committee, the meeting Adjourned at 9:40 p.m. 
 
 
APPROVED THIS ___ DAY OF__________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ _____________________________ 
  
Pauline Boratko, Committee Recorder Michelle Dewitt, Chair 

Parks, Recreation, Aquatic, Health & Safety Center Committee Minutes    City of Bethel, Alaska 
January 04, 20146 

22



23



24



 

Special Order of Business 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



Unfinished Business

26



Introduced by:  Council Member Springer 
Date: July 28, 2015 

Public Hearing: December 8, 2015 
January 12, 2016 
January 26, 2016 
February 9, 2016 

Action: 
Vote: 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
Ordinance #15-21 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE BETHEL CITY COUNCIL AMENDING BETHEL 
MUNICIPAL CODE, CHAPTER 5.30, TAXICAB, RIVER TAXI, LIMOUSINE AND 
BUS PERMITS, TO REQUIRE VIDEO CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM AND 

GLOBAL POSITIONING SYSTEM CAPABILITIES   

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, that the City of Bethel authorizes a change to 
the Bethel Municipal Code as described herein.  

SECTION 1. Classification.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and 
shall become a part of the Bethel Municipal Code.  

SECTION 2. Amendment.  The Bethel Municipal Code is to be amended as follows (new 
language is underlined and old language is stricken) 

Chapter 5.30 
TAXICAB, RIVER TAXI, LIMOUSINE AND BUS PERMITS 

Sections: 
5.30.010    Taxicab permit required. 
5.30.020    River taxi permit required. 
5.30.030    Bus permit required. 
5.30.035    Limousine permit required. 
5.30.040    Application for permits. 
5.30.050    Issuance of new nontransferable taxicab permits. 
5.30.055    Taxicabs – Renewal of existing permits. 
5.30.060    Taxicabs – Transfer of existing permit. 
5.30.065    Posting of taxicab permit. 
5.30.070    Taxicabs – Number of vehicles operated per permit. 
5.30.080    Taxicabs – Subscription to dispatch service. 
5.30.090    Taxicabs – Vehicle markings. 
5.30.100    Required equipment. 

City of Bethel, Alaska Ordinance #15-21 

1 of 15 
27

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.035
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.055
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.065
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.070
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.090
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.100


Introduced by:  Council Member Springer 
Date: July 28, 2015 

Public Hearing: December 8, 2015 
January 12, 2016 
January 26, 2016 
February 9, 2016 

Action: 
Vote: 

5.30.120    Insurance required. 
5.30.130    Posting of insurance notice. 
5.30.140    Records. 
5.30.160    Single use of vehicle. 
5.30.170    Vehicle horn honking. 
5.30.180    Safety equipment tampering prohibited. 

5.30.010 Taxicab permit required. 
A. No person may provide taxicab service in the city unless that person: 

1. Is a permittee in possession of a valid taxicab permit issued to him or her, and
is in compliance with Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC; or 

2. Has entered into an agreement with a permittee as a lease operator which
allows that person to provide taxicab services pursuant to the permittees 
authority only for as long as the permittee is lawfully in possession of the 
permit and complies with all terms and conditions of issuance of the permit, 
and only if such an arrangement is approved in advance by the transportation 
inspector. In order to obtain such approval from the transportation inspector, 
the transportation inspector must approve the language of a written lease 
agreement and determine that the lease operator meets all requirements 
imposed on chauffeurs and taxicab permittees by 
Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC. A decision of the transportation inspector 
denying a lease operator arrangement can be appealed to the commission in 
accordance with BMC 5.20.100. 

B. No permittee shall allow another person to provide taxicab service under the 
authority of his or her permit except as allowed in subsection A of this section. 
Violation of this section is grounds for immediate revocation of a taxicab permit. 

C. No person may operate or dispatch a vehicle as a taxicab unless that vehicle is 
described on a taxicab permit as provided in subsection A of this section. 
Violation of this section is grounds for immediate revocation of a license or 
permit. 

City of Bethel, Alaska Ordinance #15-21 

2 of 15 
28

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.120
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.130
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.140
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.160
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.170
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20.100


Introduced by:  Council Member Springer 
Date: July 28, 2015 

Public Hearing: December 8, 2015  
January 12, 2016 
January 26, 2016 
February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 

D. No person may provide taxicab service pursuant to a taxicab permit except in 
accordance with Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC. Violation of this section is 
grounds for immediate revocation of a permit. 

E. The permittee shall utilize as chauffeurs only currently licensed chauffeurs who 
have satisfactorily completed a commission-approved driver training and testing 
program and who are otherwise in compliance with all of the requirements of 
Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC. 

 
5.30.020 River taxi permit required. 

A. No person may provide river taxi service within the city without a river taxi 
permit. A river taxi permit, or any interest in a river taxi permit issued pursuant 
to this section, shall not be transferable through sale, lease, rental, power of 
attorney, or any other manner of conveyance, and shall become void and revert 
to the commission if it is revoked or not renewed in accordance with the 
provisions of Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC. 

B. A person may apply for an original or renewal river taxi permit by complying with 
the requirements of BMC 5.30.040. If the applicant is in compliance with all of 
the terms and conditions of Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC that apply to river 
taxis, he or she shall be issued a permit.  

 
5.30.030 Bus permit required. 

A. A person may provide bus service within the city with a bus permit. A permit, or 
any interest in a permit issued pursuant to this section, shall not be transferable 
through sale, lease, rental, power of attorney, or any other manner of 
conveyance, and shall become void and revert to the commission if it is revoked 
or not renewed in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC. 

B. A person may apply for an original or renewal bus permit by complying with the 
requirements of BMC 5.30.040. If the applicant is in compliance with all of the 
terms and conditions of Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC that apply to buses, he 
or she shall be issued a permit. 

C. A bus must operate on a defined route. The route must be submitted to the 
transportation inspector. Any changes in the route must be submitted to the 

City of Bethel, Alaska      Ordinance #15-21 

    3 of 15  
29

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50


Introduced by:  Council Member Springer 
Date: July 28, 2015 

Public Hearing: December 8, 2015  
January 12, 2016 
January 26, 2016 
February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 

transportation inspector. Bus operators may deviate from the defined route up to 
three-fourths (3/4) of a mile to accommodate handicapped passengers.  

 
5.30.035 Limousine permit required. 

A. A person may provide limousine service in the city if that person: 

1. Is a permittee in possession of a valid limousine permit issued to him or her, 
and is in compliance with Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC; 

2. Operates a limousine; 

3. Utilizes currently licensed chauffeurs who have satisfactorily completed a 
commission-approved driver training and testing program and who are otherwise 
in compliance with all of the requirements of Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC. 

B. A limousine will provide service by reservation or prearranged call for service. It is 
unlawful for a limousine chauffeur to provide flag stop service to passengers by 
curbside hail or the use of fixed routes. 

C. The current rates to be charged by a limousine permittee shall be provided to the 
transportation inspector in the form of a rate sheet. The permittee is responsible 
for providing the inspector with a new rate sheet as prices change. The prices on 
the rate sheet must be greater than the maximum rates allowed for the provision 
of a similar ride by taxicab. 

The following rates are established as minimum rates for limousine operators: 

One-half (1/2) hour or less arranged ride: fifty dollars ($50.00); 

One (1) hour arranged ride: eighty dollars ($80.00).  
 
5.30.040 Application for permits. 

A. An application for an original or renewal taxicab, bus, limousine or river taxi 
permit shall be made to the transportation inspector. 

B. An application for a permit shall be submitted on a form approved by the 
transportation inspector and shall be accompanied by: 

City of Bethel, Alaska      Ordinance #15-21 

    4 of 15  
30

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50


Introduced by:  Council Member Springer 
Date: July 28, 2015 

Public Hearing: December 8, 2015  
January 12, 2016 
January 26, 2016 
February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 

1. The fee specified in BMC 5.20.160; 

2. Proof of insurance for the vehicle as required by 
Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC; 

3. Proof that the applicant is at least eighteen (18) years of age; and 

4. Proof that the applicant is in compliance with the drug and alcohol testing 
requirements of BMC 5.20.085. 

C. An applicant shall not be granted an original or renewal permit unless the 
applicant meets the requirements imposed on chauffeurs in BMC 5.40.030. 

D. If the commission determines that the public convenience and necessity requires 
issuance of additional taxicab permits in accordance with BMC 5.30.050, the 
following persons may apply for such a permit: 

1. Currently active chauffeurs licensed under Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC 
with no fewer than two (2) years of continuous experience as a taxicab 
chauffeur in good standing in Bethel; 

2. Applicants who have not had a felony or misdemeanor conviction entered by a 
court of competent jurisdiction within five (5) years of the date of application for: 

a) Assignation, prostitution, solicitation for the purpose of prostitution, 
offering to secure another for the purpose of prostitution, maintaining 
vehicle for the purpose of prostitution or accepting money from a 
prostitute; or 

b) Sale, transportation, possession or use of any controlled substance as 
defined by AS 11.71 or a similar law of another jurisdiction, or engaging in 
an act prohibited under AS 04.11, 04.16 or 04.17. 

E. If the commission decides to issue an additional permit or permits in accordance 
with this chapter, a taxicab permit may be issued by the commission only if the 
applicant complies with subsections B through D of this section, and is certified 
as required by BMC 5.20.150. 

City of Bethel, Alaska      Ordinance #15-21 

    5 of 15  
31

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20.160
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20.085
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0540.html%235.40.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp%2311.71
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp%2304.11
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp%2304.16
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp%2304.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20.150


Introduced by:  Council Member Springer 
Date: July 28, 2015 

Public Hearing: December 8, 2015  
January 12, 2016 
January 26, 2016 
February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 

F. Each representation made in an application for an original or renewal permit shall 
be correct. Any false or misleading statement or misrepresentation as to a 
material matter in an application shall be grounds for denial of the application for 
a permit or revocation of a permit. 

 
5.30.050 Issuance of new nontransferable taxicab permits. 

A. The total number of outstanding taxicab permits shall be determined by the 
public convenience and necessity. Any person or any member of the commission 
may initiate commission inquiry into the public convenience and necessity for 
issuance of additional permits. Hearings regarding public convenience and 
necessity shall be held to determine if the public convenience and necessity 
warrants issuance of one (1) or more additional nontransferable permits. The 
commission shall hold an inquiry into the public convenience and necessity at 
least once in a twenty-four (24-) month period. 

B. At the hearing conducted pursuant to subsection A of this section, the 
commission may consider, among other things, evidence of: 

1. The public demand for additional taxi service; 

2. The unfulfilled requests for service; 

3. The reasonableness of waiting time for service; and 

4. The economic impact of additional permits on the viability of the existing 
taxicab industry. 

C. If the commission finds that it is more likely than not, based on the evidence 
presented at hearing, that the public convenience and necessity would be best 
served by the issuance of one (1) or more new taxicab permits, such permit or 
permits shall be issued in the manner provided in subsection D of this section. 

D. No later than ninety (90) days after the commission determines that a new 
taxicab permit should be issued, the transportation inspector shall conduct a 
public auction as follows: 

1. The auction shall be conducted by sealed bid, and the permit shall be issued 
to the highest qualified bidder; 

City of Bethel, Alaska      Ordinance #15-21 

    6 of 15  
32



Introduced by:  Council Member Springer 
Date: July 28, 2015 

Public Hearing: December 8, 2015  
January 12, 2016 
January 26, 2016 
February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 

2. To be responsive, a bid must equal or exceed the taxicab permit issuance fees 
provided for in BMC 5.20.160; 

3. The term “qualified bidder” means a person who meets the requirements of 
BMC 5.30.040, and tenders the successful full bid price in cash within five (5) 
days after notice that he or she is the highest bidder; 

4. If the highest bidder is not a qualified bidder, the permit shall be issued to the 
next highest bidder who is also a qualified bidder. If none of the bidders are 
also qualified bidders, the transportation inspector shall again offer the permit 
at auction as provided by this section within one hundred eighty (180) days 
after the previous auction. 

E. No person may apply for a hearing pursuant to subsection A of this section within 
one hundred twenty (120) days after one (1) or more new permits authorized for 
issuance pursuant to this section have been actually issued. The commission may 
consolidate multiple hearing requests if it deems it appropriate to do so. 

F. A permit, or any interest in a permit, issued pursuant to this section shall not be 
transferable through sale, lease, rental, power of attorney, or any other manner 
of conveyance, and shall become void and revert to the commission if the permit 
is revoked or not renewed in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC. 

G. Permittees issued nontransferable permits in accordance with this section are 
subject to all revocation, suspension, and penalty provisions of 
Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC, as well as all other requirements of 
Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC.  

 
5.30.055 Taxicabs – Renewal of existing permits. 
An application for renewal of an existing taxicab permit made in accordance with 
BMC 5.30.040 shall be renewed only if the applicant is in compliance with all of the 
requirements of Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC that apply to taxicabs and taxicab 
permittees. A permit that is not renewed shall become void and revert to the commission. 
 
 
  

City of Bethel, Alaska      Ordinance #15-21 

    7 of 15  
33

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20.160
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50


Introduced by:  Council Member Springer 
Date: July 28, 2015 

Public Hearing: December 8, 2015  
January 12, 2016 
January 26, 2016 
February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 

5.30.060 Taxicabs – Transfer of existing permit. 
A. A person may transfer an interest (whether financial or proprietary in nature, a 

security interest, or some other form of interest) in a taxicab permit originally 
issued prior to December 31, 2000, or any interest in the corporation, joint 
venture, association, partnership, or other group or entity which owns an interest 
in a taxicab permit originally issued prior to December 31, 2000, only if the 
person obtains the prior approval of the transportation inspector. 

B. An application for transfer of a taxicab permit in accordance with subsection A of 
this section shall be made to the transportation inspector on forms approved by 
the transportation inspector and shall be accompanied by the proposed contract 
for sale or other interest transfer which states the specific consideration to be 
paid by the transferee, as well as all other material conditions of the sale or 
other transfer of interest. The application for transfer shall also identify all parties 
who have or are proposed to have a financial, proprietary, security or other 
interest in the permit. The application may request other information necessary 
to determine if the transfer is in the best interests of the public, including but not 
limited to evidence of the financial ability to meet the consideration requirements 
of the contract for sale or other interest transfer. If the transferee meets the 
requirements of this section and all other requirements for obtaining a taxicab 
permit contained in Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC, and the transportation 
inspector approves the language of the contract for sale or other interest 
transfer, the transportation inspector may approve the transfer. 

C. A decision of the transportation inspector with respect to transfer of an interest 
under this section may be appealed to the commission in accordance with 
BMC 5.20.100. 

D. If transfer of a permit is not approved in accordance with this section and the 
permittee no longer wishes to operate under the permit or the permittee is no 
longer in compliance with the provisions of Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC, the 
permit shall become void and revert to the commission. 

E. New permits issued in accordance with BMC 5.30.050 shall not be transferable, and 
shall become void and revert to the commission if the permit is revoked or not 
renewed in accordance with the provisions of Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC.  

City of Bethel, Alaska      Ordinance #15-21 

    8 of 15  
34

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20.100
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0530.html%235.30.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50


Introduced by:  Council Member Springer 
Date: July 28, 2015 

Public Hearing: December 8, 2015  
January 12, 2016 
January 26, 2016 
February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 

5.30.065 Posting of taxicab permit. 
The permit for each taxicab, river taxi, limousine or bus shall be posted in the interior of 
the taxicab, river taxi, limousine or bus in the manner designated by the transportation 
inspector. No person may operate a taxicab, river taxi, limousine or bus unless the 
permit is so posted.  
 
5.30.070 Taxicabs – Number of vehicles operated per permit. 

A. Except as otherwise provided in this section, only one (1) vehicle, which shall be 
designated on the taxicab permit application, may be operated pursuant to that 
permit. 

B. Upon application to the transportation inspector, payment of the appropriate fee, 
and a demonstration of need, the transportation inspector may authorize 
operation of a substitute vehicle for a period of time not to exceed thirty (30) 
consecutive days. The transportation inspector shall be notified prior to 
substitution of the date, time, and substitution vehicle being placed in service, 
the permit number utilizing the substitute vehicle, the reason for the use of the 
substitute vehicle and the signature of the person authorizing the use of the 
substitute vehicle. If substitution is authorized, the transportation inspector shall 
subsequently be immediately notified of the date and time the substitute vehicle 
is removed from service and the original permitted vehicle is placed back in 
service. The transportation inspector shall require an inspection of the original 
vehicle before it is returned into service. No person may operate a substitute 
vehicle under this section unless the substitution has been authorized by the 
transportation inspector in accordance with this section, and a copy of the 
authorization is carried in the substitute vehicle at all times. 

C. If the use of the substitute vehicle was occasioned by a mechanical problem or 
vehicle accident affecting the safe operation of the original vehicle, the 
transportation inspector may allow a permanent vehicle transfer. 

D. The transportation inspector may permit a permanent vehicle transfer not more 
than four (4) times before the expiration of the original permit for reasons other 
than mechanical problems. 

 
 

City of Bethel, Alaska      Ordinance #15-21 

    9 of 15  
35



Introduced by:  Council Member Springer 
Date: July 28, 2015 

Public Hearing: December 8, 2015  
January 12, 2016 
January 26, 2016 
February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 

5.30.080 Taxicabs – Subscription to dispatch service. 
Every taxicab permittee shall subscribe to a dispatch service permitted pursuant to 
Chapter 5.50 BMC for the taxicab operated under his or her permit. No taxicab may be 
dispatched by more than one (1) dispatch service. Failure to comply with this section 
shall be grounds for immediate revocation of a permit or license. 
 
5.30.090 Taxicabs – Vehicle markings. 

A. Every taxicab shall display the trade name under which it operates and the 
vehicle number assigned to it by the transportation inspector in the area 
between the back bumper and the top of the trunk of the taxicab on the rear 
end of the taxicab with permanent contrasting letters and numbers no less than 
four (4) inches high. 

B. Every taxicab shall bear its vehicle number, as assigned to it by the transportation 
inspector, on all sides of the taxicab with permanent letters no less than four (4) 
inches high. Every taxicab shall display its vehicle number assigned by the 
transportation inspector on the front fender adjacent to the front door jam on 
both the driver and passenger side of the vehicle in numbers no less than four 
(4) inches high. The number shall be placed in the middle of the fender, but in 
no event less than two (2) inches above the bottom of the fender, or more than 
four (4) inches below the top of the fender. 

C. The transportation inspector will provide every taxicab permit holder with 
reflective decals bearing the assigned vehicle number required to meet the 
requirements of this section. Taxicab permit holders shall display trade names on 
vehicles with reflective decals that meet the requirements of this section. 

D. Except as otherwise provided by law, no taxicab may be used or sold for any 
purpose other than for use as a taxicab until all signs, insignia, license plates, 
lights or other markings have been removed or an “out of service” sign is posted 
on the taxicab in the form and manner designated by the transportation 
inspector. 

 
5.30.100 Required equipment. 
In addition to the mechanical equipment required in BMC 5.20.080(D), every taxicab 
shall have the following equipment: 

City of Bethel, Alaska      Ordinance #15-21 

    10 of 15  
36

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20.080


Introduced by:  Council Member Springer 
Date: July 28, 2015 

Public Hearing: December 8, 2015  
January 12, 2016 
January 26, 2016 
February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 

A. Every taxicab shall be equipped with an operable two-way radio that receives and 
transmits a signal only on the frequency used by that taxicab’s dispatch service. 
At no time may a taxicab be equipped with an apparatus capable of monitoring a 
frequency used by a dispatch service other than that used by that taxicab’s 
dispatch service. The radio of each taxicab shall be identifiable through the 
dispatch company through which the taxicab is dispatched. 

B. Every taxicab shall be equipped at all times with an interior light of not less than 
two (2) candlepower arranged so as to illuminate the entire passenger 
compartment. The light shall be illuminated whenever passengers are being 
loaded or unloaded from the taxicab between one-half (1/2) hour after sunset of 
one (1) day and one-half (1/2) hour before sunrise the next day. No shades or 
blinds shall be drawn over any windows of the taxicab while occupied by a 
passenger. 

C. Every taxicab shall be equipped with a nonflashing light on the exterior of the 
roof of a type approved by the transportation inspector. The light shall be 
illuminated only when the taxicab is in service. 

D. All taxicabs, limousines and buses must have factory seat belts for the maximum 
number of passengers that may be transported in a particular vehicle. 

E. River taxis shall have the following: 

1. Four-wheel drive vehicle with at least twelve- (12-) inch clearance; 

2. VHF radio; 

3. Dual battery system; 

4. All equipment listed in subsections A through C of this section in addition to 
the following: a come-a-long or winch and shovel; ground and air flares; 
carbon monoxide detector; first aid kit; safe alternate form of heat, i.e., 
candles, canned heat, etc., one (1) wool blanket, one (1) survival or space 
blanket for each potential passenger, spare tire, and tools required to change a 
tire, i.e., jack lug wrench, etc.; 

City of Bethel, Alaska      Ordinance #15-21 

    11 of 15  
37



Introduced by:  Council Member Springer 
Date: July 28, 2015 

Public Hearing: December 8, 2015  
January 12, 2016 
January 26, 2016 
February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 

5. A river taxi driver shall carry clothes appropriate for the weather conditions 
and the number of passengers for a particular trip, to include but not be limited 
to, winter hats, boots, gloves, pants and coats.  

F.  Every regulated vehicle shall be equipped at all times with a video camera 
surveillance system and have global positioning system capability. The 
surveillance and GPS systems shall be capable of recording and storing the data 
of at least 72 hours of in-service operations. The recorded data shall be stored 
on board the taxicab or transmitted for storage. The stored data for the 
immediately preceding 72 hours of recording shall not be altered or manipulated 
by any person, and shall be made available for review and inspection by the 
transportation inspector for purposes of enforcement of chapters 5.20, 5.30 and 
5.40 or by a peace officer as defined in AS 1.10.060 upon request. For good 
cause, the Transportation Inspector may order retention of recorded data of 
specific dates, trips, or incidents for up to two years. 

1.The video camera surveillance system shall have the capability to operate 24 
hours a day, record video only, and be compatible with surveillance during 
both daytime and nighttime. The surveillance system shall either have 
continuous operation or be activated by the opening of a door, or some other 
self-initiating device which does not require the specific decision or action by 
the chauffeur to activate the surveillance system. The system shall be 
capable of producing high-quality pictures for law enforcement use. The 
system shall have cameras facing the front and rear and positioned in a 
manner that provides views of the regulated vehicle interior that are visible 
to passerby and does not violate privacy rights. A limousine shall not have 
video surveillance of the passenger area designed and intended to provide 
privacy from the chauffeur and public view, but may have a view into that 
area when a privacy partition or device is open. 

2. The global positioning system capability of any regulated vehicle shall either 
have continuous operation or be activated by a self-initiating device which 
does not require the specific decision or action by the chauffeur to activate 
the global positioning system. The global positioning system in taxicabs must 
be capable of alerting the monitoring station of emergencies. The dispatch 
company or a company within the municipality approved by the 
transportation inspector will be the monitoring station for a taxicab's global 
positioning system. 

City of Bethel, Alaska      Ordinance #15-21 

    12 of 15  
38



Introduced by:  Council Member Springer 
Date: July 28, 2015 

Public Hearing: December 8, 2015  
January 12, 2016 
January 26, 2016 
February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 

5.30.120 Insurance required. 
A. Before any permit is issued for any taxicab, river taxi, limousine or bus, the 

applicant shall furnish to the transportation inspector the insurance policies 
required by this section, issued by an insurance company that is authorized to do 
business within the state. 

B. The insurance required by this section for vehicles with a manufacturer’s rated 
seating capacity of six (6) persons or less, or, if a mini-van, six (6) persons or 
less seating capacity after seat removal to accommodate baggage, shall provide 
coverage as follows: 

1. Combined single limit for all bodily injury or property damage arising from one 
(1) accident: three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000); and 

2. For all persons injured or dead in any one (1) accident caused by an 
uninsured motorist: One hundred thousand dollars ($100,000). 

C. The insurance required by this section for vehicles with a manufacturer’s rated 
seating capacity of seven (7) persons or more, or if a mini-van, seven (7) 
persons or more seating capacity after seat removal to accommodate baggage, 
shall provide coverage as follows: 

1. Combined single limit for all bodily injury or property damage arising from one 
(1) accident: Seven hundred thousand dollars ($700,000); and 

2. For all persons injured or dead in any one (1) accident caused by an 
uninsured motorist: One hundred thousand dollars ($100,000). 

D. Every insurance policy or certificate shall contain a clause obligating the insurer 
or surety to give the transportation inspector written notice no less than thirty 
(30) days before the cancellation, expiration, nonrenewal, lapse, or other 
termination of such insurance, unless the specified policy is for a vehicle which 
will no longer be used as a taxicab. A lapse, cancellation, expiration, nonrenewal, 
or termination of insurance coverage shall work an automatic suspension of any 
permit for so long as the permittee is without insurance as required by this 
section, and it shall be a violation of this chapter to provide taxicab service with 

City of Bethel, Alaska      Ordinance #15-21 

    13 of 15  
39



Introduced by:  Council Member Springer 
Date: July 28, 2015 

Public Hearing: December 8, 2015  
January 12, 2016 
January 26, 2016 
February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 

a vehicle not insured as required by this section. The insurance policy shall list 
the city as a certificate holder.  

 
5.30.130 Posting of insurance notice. 
Proof of insurance as required by Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC shall be carried in 
the passenger compartment of all taxicabs at all times.  
 
5.30.140 Records. 

A. Every taxicab, river taxi, and limousine permittee shall maintain a current and 
accurate daily list of the regulated vehicles operated pursuant to the permit. The 
daily list shall contain the following information: 

1. The name, address, telephone number, chauffeur’s license number and 
expiration of each chauffeur operating such regulated vehicles; 

2. The daily hours worked by each chauffeur operating such regulated vehicles; 

3. The number of days each such regulated vehicle is operated during each 
calendar month; 

4. The records maintained pursuant to subsection A of this section as well as 
many other records related to the operation of the permit shall be retained by 
the permittee for at least six (6) months and shall be made available upon the 
request of the transportation commission or the transportation inspector. The 
transportation inspector may request that the permittee forward the record to 
him or her on a monthly basis. 

B. The records maintained pursuant to subsection A of this section as well as any 
other records related to the operation of the permit shall be retained by the 
permittee for at least six (6) months and shall be made available upon request of 
the transportation commission or the transportation inspector. The transportation 
inspector may request that the permittee forward the record to him or her on a 
monthly basis.  

 
 
 
 

City of Bethel, Alaska      Ordinance #15-21 

    14 of 15  
40

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50


Introduced by:  Council Member Springer 
Date: July 28, 2015 

Public Hearing: December 8, 2015 
January 12, 2016 
January 26, 2016 
February 9, 2016 

Action: 
Vote: 

5.30.160 Single use of vehicle. 
It is unlawful to use a regulated vehicle for any other transportation service regulated 
by Chapters 5.20 through 5.50 BMC other than that service which is authorized on the 
permit.  

5.30.170 Vehicle horn honking. 
It is unlawful to honk the horn of a taxicab from 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m., Sunday 
through Thursday, and from 12:00 a.m. to 7:00 a.m., Friday and Saturday. 

5.30.180 Safety equipment tampering prohibited.  
A. Except for maintenance or repair, no person shall disconnect, cover, misdirect or 

cause to be non-functional the radio identifier, silent electronic alarm, 
surveillance or security camera, or global positioning system in a regulated 
vehicle. Tampering with the safety equipment as described herein is a violation 
subject to civil penalty of:  

1. First violation. $250.00.
2. Second violation. $500.00
3. Third violation.  $750.00.
4. Fourth violation. $1,000.

SECTION 3.  Effective Date.  This section shall become effective upon passage by the 
City Council. 

ENACTED THIS __ DAY OF _____ 2015, BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR AND ___ 
OPPOSED.  

___________________________ 
Richard Robb, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

City of Bethel, Alaska Ordinance #15-21 

15 of 15 
41

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0520.html%235.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Bethel/html/Bethel05/Bethel0550.html%235.50


 City of Bethel
Ordinance #15-14 (c)

1 of 1

Introduced by:
Introduction Date:

Public Hearing: February 9, 2016

Action:
Vote:

Section 1.  That the following sums of money as may be needed or deemed necessary to provide for increased

Budget Modification 

Increases
10-66-773 Ridgecrest Drive Project 265,000 

0 

Total Increases 265,000 
Decreases

10-39900 Unrestricted Undesignated Fund Balance (265,000)

Total Decreases (265,000)

TOTAL Net Change to Appropriations 0 

TOTAL CHANGE APPROPRIATIONS
Total Increases
Total Decreases

Cumulative Change to Revenues 0 

Change to Revenues  Increase/(Decrease) 0
Change to Appropriations  Increase/(Decrease) 265,000

These changes INCREASE ↑ the overall expenditures/expenses of the City by 265,000

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS __ DAY OF  -------------------BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR AND __ OPPOSED.

ATTEST:

_____________________________
Lori Strickler, City Clerk

City Manager Capela
January 26, 2016

ORDINANCE #15-14 ( c )

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA

expenses and liabilities of the City of Bethel are hereby appropriated for the corporate purposes and objects of the City hereinafter specified for 
Fiscal Year 2016, July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016.

TOTAL CHANGE TO OVERALL CITY BUDGET

____________________________________
 Richard Robb, Mayor

An Ordinance of the Bethel City Council Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2016 Budget

Section 2.  The following is a summary of the changes by fund and department:

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



Introduced by: City Manager Capela 
Date: January 26, 2016 

Public Hearing: February 9, 2016 
Action: 

Vote: 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE #16-02 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE BETHEL CITY COUNCIL, ACQUISITION OF 
PROPERTY, LOT 15, USS 4177, 10.54 ACRES OF UNDEVELOPED PARCEL, 

FROM BUREAU OF LAND MANAGEMENT, In ACCORDANCE WITH BMC 
4.08.020 

WHEREAS, the City of Bethel received said parcel by United States Patent issued on 
August 7, 1968 (Patent No. 50-69-0049) under the Recreation and Public 
Purposes Act (43 U.S.C. 869 et seq. June 14, 1926);  

WHEREAS,  the City of Bethel was the owner of Lot 15, USS 4177, a  10.54 acre 
undeveloped parcel located on Chief Eddie Hoffman Highway, Bethel, 
Alaska;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the City of Bethel, approved a transfer of said property to the 
U.S. Department of Interior, Bureau of Land Management(BLM) through 
an issued Certificate of Approval of Transfer (Certificate No. 50-39) and a 
Certificate of Approval of Change of Use (Certificate No. 50-38) to the 
State of Alaska through the Department of Natural Resources that 
transferred the Management Rights to the Department of Military and 
Veterans Affairs to build the “Readiness Center” for Alaska National 
Guard;  

WHEREAS, Department of Military and Veterans Affairs has agreed to return the said 
property to the City of Bethel if this property was not used for the 
“Readiness Center;”  

WHEREAS, The Department of Military and Veterans Affairs did not use this site for 
the “Readiness Center” as stipulated; 

WHEREAS, the City of Bethel has requested that BLM transfer said property, Lot 15, 
USS 4177 back to the City of Bethel. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of Bethel, to affirm the 
request of said property in accordance to the BMC 4.08, Acquisition and Disposal of 
Land Sec. 4.08.020. 

City of Bethel, Alaska Ordinance # 16-02 
Page 1 of 2 

72



Introduced by: City Manager Capela 
Date: January 26, 2016 

Public Hearing: February 9, 2016 
Action: 

Vote: 

ENACTED THIS  __th DAY OF FEBRUARY 2016 BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR 
AND __ OPPOSED. 

_______________________ 
Richard Robb, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

City of Bethel, Alaska Ordinance # 16-02 
Page 2 of 2 

73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



  Page 1 

Signatory initials___________ 

Service and Monitoring Agreement 
Northern Power® Wind Turbine 

 
This Service Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made as of ____________, 20____, by and 
between ________and Northern Power Systems, Inc. (“Northern Power”) with respect to 
monitoring, maintenance and repair of the Northern Power wind turbine(s) (the “Turbines”) 
designated by serial number on the attached Order Form (the “Service Order”). 
 
1. Covered Services; Additional Services 
 
1.1 End-User hereby engages Northern Power to provide, and Northern Power hereby 
agrees to provide the services (the “Services”) specified on the Service Order attached hereto in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and consistent with Section 8 of the 
Northern Power Operations & Maintenance Manual for the Turbines (the “O&M Manual”).  
Northern Power’s current service and maintenance offerings are set forth on the Service and 
Monitoring Agreement Rate Sheet attached hereto (the “Rate Sheet”).  Northern Power may 
change the offerings and prices on the Rate Sheet from time to time, provided that no such 
changes shall affect an existing Service Order between End-User and Northern Power. 
 
1.2 End-User may purchase additional services under this Agreement by making such a 
request to the Northern Power Service Department detailing the nature and type of services 
required, the dates for the services to be delivered, and the primary End-User contact.  Northern 
Power will provide the End-User with a Service Order in a timely fashion that details the scope of 
services, the scheduled services dates, and the fee and expenses for such services.  Northern 
Power will only provide such services once the Service Order has been prepared and approved 
by the End-User.   
 
2. Provision of Services 
 
2.1 In the provision of these services, End-User and Northern Power agree on the following 
terms and conditions: 
 

(a) Northern Power will provide the services in accordance with the maintenance schedule 
for each Turbine which may be revised in the normal course of business based on the 
Turbine’s maintenance standards and fleet maintenance history.  

 
(b) End-User shall at all times observe the guidance provided in this Agreement and O&M 

Manual and updates, thereto provided by Northern Power. 
 

(c) End-User recognizes that Northern Power may make Turbine control system and 
software modifications as part of providing Services.  Northern Power also agrees to use 
commercially reasonable efforts to provide the End-User notice of software upgrades, 
through email notification, which the End-User may choose to purchase.  

 
(d) End-User agrees to provide Northern Power prompt unencumbered access to site power 

and facilities where the Turbine is located for purposes of providing the Services; 
including arranging all necessary permissions, permits and/or approvals required on a 
timely basis to facilitate site visits.  

 
(e) End-User agrees to provide a contact person and relevant contact information to 

Northern Power for purposes of maintaining updated product and service information as 
well as for coordinating services hereunder; End-User agrees to keep such information 
current and up to date.   

82



  Page 2 

Signatory initials___________ 

 
(f) This Service Agreement shall remain valid pending normal operation of the Turbine on a 

continuous basis in accordance with the guidelines as defined in the O&M Manual.  
 

(g) End-User recognizes that for safety reasons the Turbine will need to be shut off during 
service.  Maintenance will occur during normal business hours Monday through Friday.  
Other service times are subject to published rates per Northern Power’s then-current 
Rate Sheet. 

 
(h) Services will be provided only if Northern Power determines that the Turbine is safe to 

service and that the End-User represents that to its knowledge there are no prevailing 
safety issues that would prevent the Turbine from being serviced by Northern Power or 
its designee.   

 
(i) Prior to execution of this Agreement, the End-User will acknowledge its compliance with 

the O&M Manual and Northern Power or its designee may ask End-User for a Safety 
Declaration prior to the performance of the services. If such declaration is not furnished, 
Northern Power will investigate the performance history of the turbine and make a 
judgment on the “serviceability” of the turbine.  Northern Power will promptly notify the 
End-User of the issues that need to addressed and reach agreement on a plan to 
proceed.   

 
3. Safety.  END-USER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT, AS WITH ANY SOPHISTICATED 
INDUSTRIAL MACHINERY, THE TURBINE MAY BE UNSAFE OR EVEN DANGEROUS IF 
NOT OPERATED WITH DUE CARE AND CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATIONS AND 
MAINTENANCE MANUAL PROVIDED BY NORTHERN POWER.  UNSAFE OPERATION OF 
THE TURBINE – INCLUDING BY PROVIDING ACCESS THERETO TO PERSONS OTHER 
THAN QUALIFIED SERVICE AND MAINTENANCE PROFESSIONALS -- MAY CREATE 
CIRCUMSTANCES THAT COULD CAUSE SERIOUS INJURY, DEATH, OR PROPERTY 
DAMAGE.  OPERATION OF THE TURBINE OTHER THAN IN STRICT AND FULL 
COMPLIANCE WITH O&M MATERIALS PROVIDED BY NORTHERN POWER WILL LIMIT OR 
ELIMINATE THE OPERABILITY OF THE TURBINE AND SHALL VOID THE LIMITED 
WARRANTY.  END-USER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT IS END-USER’S SOLE 
RESPONSIBILITY TO ENSURE SAFE OPERATION OF THE TURBINE. 
 
4. Turbine Monitoring.   
 
4.1 If End-User opts for SmartView 24X7 Monitoring, End-User grants Northern Power 
unconditional access to all information relating to the operation of the Turbine, including electronic 
access via SmartView to enable Northern Power to provide continuous monitoring of Turbine 
operation and performance and access to SmartView hardware at the site where the Turbine is 
located.   
 
4.2 End-User agrees to provide real time Internet access only to Northern Power or Northern 
Power’s designated agent.  Northern Power agrees to provide monitoring of the operation and 
performance of the Turbine through its Network Operations Center, using SmartView or other 
software data collection and analysis..   
 

5. CONFIDENTIALITY AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY.  

5.1 End-User  expressly recognizes that (i) the software and/or firmware associated with the 
SmartView remote monitoring system and related user manuals (the “SmartView Software”), (ii) 

83



  Page 3 

Signatory initials___________ 

the software and/or firmware associated with the direct drive generator and the power converter 
and related user manuals (the “Turbine Control” and “Power Electronics Software”) used with or 
included in the Turbine, and (iii) the design of Turbine, including the direct drive generator and the 
power converter, embody and constitute confidential and proprietary information of Northern Power 
(“Confidential Information”). Such direct drive generator and power converter, excluding the 
Turbine Control and Power Electronics Software, are collectively referred to herein as the “Power 
System.”  End-User  shall not tamper with, disassemble, modify, or reverse engineer any part of 
the Power System, either supplied by Northern Power as part of a system or as a separate item, 
nor shall End-User  disassemble, reverse compile or reverse engineer any SmartView Software or 
Turbine Control and Power Electronics Software.  End-User acknowledges that the disclosure by 
End-User of Confidential Information may cause irreparable injury to Northern Power and damages 
that may be difficult to ascertain.  IN THE EVENT OF THE ACTUAL OR THREATENED 
DISCLOSURE OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION, NORTHERN POWER SHALL, IN 
ADDITION TO ANY OTHER RIGHTS OR REMEDIES AND NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION 17 
OF THIS AGREEMENT, BE ENTITLED TO INJUNCTIVE RELIEF FROM A COURT OF 
COMPETENT JURISDICTION TO PROTECT AND RECOVER THE CONFIDENTIAL 
INFORMATION; NORTHERN POWER RESERVES ALL RIGHTS TO PURSUE AND OBTAIN 
APPROPRIATE LEGAL AND EQUITABLE REMEDIES FOR ANY VIOLATION OF THIS 
SECTION 5, End-User  shall not object to the entry of an injunction or other equitable relief against 
End-User  on the basis of an adequate remedy at law, lack of irreparable harm or any other reason.   

5.2 Northern Power shall not be required to provide End-User with maintenance, support or 
updates regarding the Power System and Turbine Control and Power Electronics Software unless 
End-User opts to purchase RTU Maintenance and TSW Updates as indicated in the Rate Sheet. 

5.3  End-User acknowledges that the SmartView Software is not intended to be used as billing 
software or to otherwise calculate charges or credits for electricity generated by the Turbine.  End-
User acknowledges that Northern Power has an absolute and unconditional right to monitor the 
performance of any Turbine, including via SmartView monitoring, and expressly and irrevocably 
confirms here its permission for Northern Power to do so. End-User acknowledges connectivity to 
the Internet must be maintained at its expense for any and all monitoring services. Maintaining 
Internet connectivity is exclusive of temporary power outages beyond the control of the End-User. 

5.4 Except for limited usage rights in connection with End-User’s operation of the Turbine, this 
Agreement does not grant to End-User any right, title, or interest in or to Northern Power’s 
intellectual property, other proprietary rights or other information, including, but not limited to, 
Northern Power’s name, trademarks, trade names, trade dress, trade symbols, copyrights, patents, 
patent applications, inventions, trade secrets, customer lists, product names or designations, 
processes, designs, or formulas.   

5.5 This Section 5 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.   

6. ON-SITE ACTIVITY. 

The following conditions shall apply to any on-site Services provided by Northern Power: 

6.1 End-User shall provide such assistance as Northern Power may reasonably require to 
facilitate timely performance of this Agreement. End-User is responsible for support and facilitation 
by End-User of Northern Power’s performance of this Agreement.   If Northern Power is unable to 
perform through no fault of its own or as a result of End-User’s failure to cooperate or provide 
assistance, Northern Power shall be excused from performance. In such event, Northern Power 
may, at its option, terminate this Agreement or continue to perform to the extent possible, and shall 

84



  Page 4 

Signatory initials___________ 

be entitled to an equitable adjustment in purchase price and/or schedule. End-User assistance 
shall be free of charge to Northern Power and shall include but not be limited to: 

 (a)  End-User shall provide reasonable security and protection for all persons, property 
and equipment employed or used by Northern Power. 

 (b) End-User shall make available to Northern Power the use of any required utilities, 
including electrical power, transport and water. 

 (c) End-User shall assist Northern Power to obtain access to all necessary roads, 
railways, pumping stations, power lines, pipelines, canals, and the like. 

 (d) End-User shall obtain any permits, licenses, or authorizations necessary to 
perform this Agreement. 

 
7. Payments: 
  
7.1 All prices in the Rate Sheet are in U.S. dollars. Prices do not include any taxes (sales and 
use, VAT or other), tariffs, import or export duties, shipping, delivery, set fees, which are all 
payable by the End-User unless specifically listed otherwise. End-User shall pay any and all 
taxes and charges or provide Northern Power with acceptable exemption certificates before 
execution of this Agreement and payment of any amounts hereunder.  
 
7.2 End-User shall make all payments, in U.S. (dollars) currency, either: 
 
 a)  U.S. Customers please remit payment via electronic funds transfer to: 
 
  Comerica Bank 

San Jose, CA 95110 
ABA/Routing:                     121 137 522 
Swift Code:                         MNBDUS33 
Credit Account Name: Northern Power Systems, Inc. 
Final Credit Acct No: 1894469616 
Currency:                             USD 

 
Domestic Remit Address for Check Payments: 

Northern Power Systems, Inc. 
PO BOX 674519 
Detroit, MI 48267-4519 
 

b) Non-U.S. Customers please remit payment via electronic funds transfer to 
 

Comerica Bank 
San Jose, CA 95110 
ABA/Routing:                     121 137 522 
Swift Code:                         MNBDUS33 
Credit Account Name: Northern Power Systems, Inc. 
Final Credit Acct No: 1894469608 
Currency:                             USD 

 
 
7.3 End-User represents and warrants that it has the financial ability to fully perform its 
obligations under this Agreement.  End-User  has obtained any commitments, consents or 

85



  Page 5 

Signatory initials___________ 

approvals from third parties necessary for End-User  to perform hereunder, and such 
commitments, consents or approvals are binding and non-discretionary.  End-User’s performance 
of its obligations hereunder will not violate any agreement or instrument to which End-User is a 
party or by which its properties are bound.   
 
7.4 End-User shall make all payments due to Northern Power hereunder without deduction, 
set-off or counterclaim.    
 
7.5 Unscheduled work or events: To be paid within 30 days of service. 
 
8.  Term and Termination 
 
8.1 This Agreement will become effective on the date hereof and will remain in effect for the 
duration of the period specified on the Service Order.  Either party may terminate this Agreement 
at any time upon thirty (30) days’ prior written notice as long as no Service Order is in effect at such 
time. 
 
8.2 Termination. 
 

(a)     Upon the failure of either party to remedy a material breach of any of its obligations 
under this Agreement within 30 days following receipt of written notice of said breach, the other 
party may terminate this Agreement immediately by written notice and pursue all available 
remedies for breach. 
 

(b) Either party may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice to the 
other party in the event that (i) the other party is declared insolvent or bankrupt by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, (ii) the other party becomes involved in a voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy 
or other insolvency petition or proceeding for the benefit of its creditors, or (iii) this Agreement is 
assigned by such party for the benefit of creditors. 
 
9.  Limitation of Liability  
 
9.1 NORTHERN POWER SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO END-USER FOR ANY INCIDENTAL, 
CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, INDIRECT OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES ARISING 
OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO LOST PROFITS OR COSTS 
OF COVER, LOSS OF REVENUE, LOSS OF PRODUCTION, LOSS OF USE OR BUSINESS 
INTERRUPTION OR THE LIKE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER NORTHERN POWER WAS 
ADVISED OR AWARE OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. 
 
9.2 EXCEPT IN CASES OF INJURY TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY CAUSED BY 
NORTHERN POWER’S NEGLIGENT ACTS OR OMISSIONS, IN NO EVENT WILL THE TOTAL 
LIABILITY OF NORTHERN POWER ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT EXCEED THE 
AMOUNT PAID OR PAYABLE TO NORTHERN POWER FOR SERVICES UNDER THIS 
AGREEMENT WITH REGARD TO THE TURBINE(S) WITH RESPECT TO WHICH A CLAIM 
AROSE.  THIS LIMITATION OF THE TOTAL LIABILITY OF NORTHERN POWER SHALL 
APPLY REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT, 
NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY, CONTRIBUTION OR OTHERWISE. 

10.  Dispute Resolution.  

10.1 Any controversy, dispute or claim between the Parties not settled by mutual agreement (a 
"Dispute") shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Vermont.  Each Party 
hereby submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state or federal courts located in Vermont for 

86



  Page 6 

Signatory initials___________ 

purposes of any action relating to the interpretation or enforcement of the provisions of this 
Agreement, and agrees that any legal proceedings arising under or pursuant to this agreement 
shall be conducted in such state. 
 
11. General Provisions. 
 
11.1 No action, failure of action or delay by either party will constitute a waiver of any of its rights 
or remedies under this Agreement.  The waiver of a breach of any provision does not constitute a 
waiver of a subsequent breach of the same or different provision. 
 
11.2 Northern Power is an independent contractor.  End-User and Northern Power are not, and 
will not be, joint venturers, partners, agents, servants, or employees or fiduciaries of the other, and 
do not have the power to bind or obligate the other.   
 
11.3 The rights and liabilities of the parties under this Agreement are governed in  all respects 
by the laws of the State of Vermont, without reference to or application of its conflicts of law 
provisions.   
 
11.4 This Agreement may not be amended, modified or altered except in writing signed by both 
Parties.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the 
validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be affected or impaired 
thereby. 
 
11.5 Any preprinted terms and conditions contained in any Service Order or other similar 
document shall be null and void and have no force in modifying the terms of this Service 
Agreement.   
 
11.6 Any correspondence relating hereto shall be directed to the address indicated for the 
respective parties on the signature page of this Agreement. 
 
11.7 End-User may not assign its rights and obligations hereunder without the prior written 
consent of Northern Power, which will be in Northern Power’s sole discretion but not to be 
unreasonably withheld.  Northern Power may freely assign its rights hereunder to a service provider 
authorized by Northern Power.  The rights and obligations under this Agreement will inure to the 
benefit of, and be binding upon, the parties hereto and their respective heirs, administrators, 
executors, personal representatives, successors and permitted assigns. 
 
11.8 This Agreement may be executed by the Parties in counterparts, including counterparts 
executed and delivered via facsimile, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which 
together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
  

87



  Page 7 

Signatory initials___________ 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Extended Service and 
Monitoring Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives as of the 
date first written above. 

Northern Power Systems, Inc. 

 

[End User Entity] 

  
By:  

Signature 
By:  

Signature 

Name  
Print/Type 

Name  
Print/Type 

Title  
Print/Type 

Date  
 

Title  
Print/Type 

 
Date  

 

End User Address for Notices: 
 
 

 
Attention:  
 
Phone: (-----) ------------ 
Fax: (----) --------------- 

 
 
 

Service and Maintenance Agreement Order Form: 
 
 
Turbine Serial Number(s):         
 
Service Program Type:______ _______________________________________ 
 
Term of service:   Commencing on (date):   ______ 
 
Price per term:  $0  Total Contract Price:  $   
 
 
 
 
Annual Maintenance to be performed on: 
 

 

88



  Page 8 

Signatory initials___________ 

 
Service and Monitoring Agreement Rate Sheet: 

 
 
Description of Services, Turbines no longer under Warranty: 
 

 SmartView® Monitoring: NPS 24x7 turbine monitoring option ensures that your turbine 
is being watched for conditions that cause shutdown of the turbine. Monitoring includes both 
analyzing and clearing faults that can be safely reset, and notification of conditions that 
require intervention. This service is included when you have an active warranty agreement. 
However, when your warranty expires we no longer monitor your turbine unless a new 
monitoring agreement is in place. 
 

Remote Terminal Unit (RTU) Maintenance and Turbine Software (SW) updates: This 
service ensures you are up-to-date with the best turbine software for your application, 
designed to maximize availability, performance, and safety. In addition, should your RTU 
have a component failure, Northern will cover the cost of a replacement RTU for only the 
cost of shipping. This service is also covered for those on standard or extended warranty. 

 
Remote/phone support: Designed to go hand-in-hand with onsite basic training, we 

provide remote phone support for the duration of the agreement at a fixed cost. When a 
turbine is down for whatever reason, we can provide live support while your designated in-
house Operations & Maintenance, Site engineer or delegate of your choice works to resolve 
any issues.  
 

Full Coverage: For those end-users without staff suitable for working on your turbine, 
our full service maintenance package ensures annual maintenance is performed by a 
certified NPS service provider for a fixed annual cost. This option comes with the added 
benefit of a 20% parts discount for parts required to fix the turbine outside of the regularly 
scheduled annual maintenance cycle. 
 

Preventive maintenance: For those end-users without staff suitable for working on your 
turbine, our preventive maintenance package ensures annual maintenance is performed by 
a certified NPS service provider for a fixed annual cost. (Price quote available upon request) 

 
Onsite Basic Training: For larger facilities with technically capable full time maintenance 

staff, we offer one-time on-site basic training for 3-8 participants that includes instruction on 
how to replace the majority of components in the turbine as well as how to self-perform 
annual maintenance. If you or your staff are qualified industrial climbers, this training can 
help customers improve profitability by reducing the labor cost of maintenance and on-site 
troubleshooting. (Price quote available upon request) 

 
 
Description of Services, Turbines under Warranty: 
 
Preventative Maintenance Package: As part of the standard and/or extended NPS warranty the 
following are automatically included in the Preventative Maintenance Package: SmartView 24x7 
Monitoring & Reporting, Maintenance and Turbine SW updates, Remote/Phone Support. The 
Preventative Maintenance Package adds all annual scheduled maintenance for the contract 
period. The addition of a PM Package to an optional 3 Yr. extended warranty purchased as part 
of the original turbine sale provides the maximum value and protection to turbine performance.  

89



  Page 9 

Signatory initials___________ 

 

 
All Services Pricing subject to change 

(1) All unscheduled maintenance contracted to Northern Power Systems will be billed at rates according to the 
prevailing Commercial Rate Schedule. 

(2) Phone support is only available for qualified trained L1 technicians during business hours (7:00 AM to 5:00 PM 
EST Monday-Friday). Remote phone support for end-users without an existing agreement will be billed at the 
engineering rate according to the prevailing Commercial Rate Schedule.  

(3) Onsite training pricing is available for the self-support program based location and the number students.  T&E 
not included.  

 
Cost Items Specifically Excluded from the Maintenance Schedule: 

 Utilities to support operation of the Turbine (including isolation transformer) 
 Telephone/DSL or internet access services 
 End-User requested maintenance not part of the annual maintenance schedule 
 Any travel that is more than 200 Miles from NPS service provider are the responsibility of the End-User 
 Parts and services related to non-maintenance service and or repairs will be billed per the approved Service 

Order 
Other vendors, contractors or providers of services (such as cranes or lifts) necessary to complete unplanned 
maintenance and repairs will be at the End-User’s expense.  It is understood that Northern Power is providing service 
technician(s), diagnostic equipment and hand tools only. 
 
 
 
 
 

90



 

New Business   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

91



Introduced by: Vice-Mayor Maczynski 
Date: February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote: 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 

Resolution # 16-04 

A RESOLUTION OF BY THE BETHEL CITY COUNCIL REQUESTING ALASKA 
LEGISLATURE TO CONSIDER LESS SEVERE CUTS TO   PUBLIC 

BROADCASTING SERVICES IN ALASKA  

WHEREAS, the State of Alaska is facing another challenging budget for Fiscal Year 
2017, and likely additional fiscal years in the near future; 

WHEREAS, a budget shortfall of this magnitude results in tough choices and difficult 
cuts in every facet of State Government all across Alaska; 

WHEREAS,  Alaska Public Broadcasting is a statewide essential service supported by the 
State of Alaska; 

WHEREAS,  public broadcasting provides a wealth of civic, cultural, education, news, 
and entertainment programming and is the primary source of emergency 
information for Alaska residents; 

 WHEREAS,  the public broadcasting budget is facing another round of significant 
reductions this Fiscal Year; 

WHEREAS,  cuts to all segments of government are expected for FY17 but the 
proportion of the reduction to public broadcasting will adversely affect the 
availability of local services across Alaska, especially in rural Alaska where 
public broadcasting is often the primary means of community and regional 
news and information sharing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Bethel City Council that the 
membership respectfully requests the Alaska Legislature consider less severe cuts to 
Alaska’s Public Broadcasting Services in the FY2017 budget.  

ENACTED THIS __ DAY OF FEBRUARY 2016 BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR AND __ 
OPPOSED.

___________________________ 
 Richard Robb, Mayor 

ATTEST:

__________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Resolution #16-04 
1 of 1 

92



 

Resolution 16-05: Request To The Army Corps Of 
Engineers, Additional Time To Review The Donlin 

Gold Environmental Impact Statement, will be 
provide to the Council by email and provided to the 

public on the City of Bethel website, 
www.cityofbethel.org on Friday, February 5, 2016. 

93

http://www.cityofbethel.org/


 Introduced by: Ann Capela, City Manager 
Date: February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 
  

CITY OF BETHEL 
 

Resolution # 16-06 
 
A RESOLUTION BY THE BETHEL CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE AN APPLICATION 

TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 STATE HOMELAND SECURITY PROGRAM 
 
 
WHEREAS,  the Alaska Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 

administers the State Homeland Security Program (SHSP) grant; 
 
WHEREAS,  per the grant guidance, “the SHSP is an assistance program that provides 

funds to build capabilities at the state and local levels to enhance resilience 
to absorb disruptions and rapidly recover from incidents both manmade and 
natural;” 

 
WHEREAS,  The program supports the National Preparedness Goal for “A secure and 

resilient nation with the capabilities required across the whole community to 
prevent, protect against, mitigate, respond to, and recover from the threats 
and hazards that pose the greatest risk.” 

 
WHEREAS,  the City can request funding for up to five projects and no match is required; 
 
WHEREAS,  the FY 2016 SHSP grant application is due February 19, 2016; 
 
WHEREAS,  the Bethel Police Department needs: 12 video cameras and one server 

installed at the Police Station to replace and add to its existing video camera 
repertoire, 25 body cameras, 10 portable radios, and 10 mobile radios;  

 
WHEREAS,  the Bethel Fire Department needs 15 portable radios and five foam fire 

extinguishers; 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Department needs 14 video cameras and a server installed 

to protect both its water treatment plants; 
 
WHEREAS, The Port of Bethel needs four video cameras installed to protect the City 

Dock and Petro Port and two portable light plants for emergency lighting; 
 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Resolution #16-06 
    1 of 2  
    

94



 Introduced by: Ann Capela, City Manager 
Date: February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 
WHEREAS, the City will prepare and submit a grant request for the amount needed to 

purchase essential equipment and install it, as needed, and this amount is 
expected to be $207,000. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Bethel City Council hereby approves 

the preparation and submission of an FY 2016 State Homeland Security 
Program grant application to request funding for essential equipment to 
protect critical City infrastructure, foster communication, and record events;  

 
ENACTED THIS 9th DAY OF FEBRUARY 2016 BY A VOTE OF ____ IN FAVOR 
AND ____ OPPOSED.  
 
 
 

___________________________  
Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Resolution #16-06 
    2 of 2  
    

95



Introduced by: Mayor Robb 
Date: February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 
 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
 
 

Resolution # 16-07 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF BY THE BETHEL CITY COUNCIL SUPPORTING PUBLIC 
EMPLOYEES RETIRMENT SYSTEM REFORM 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Bethel, and other municipalities, contribute to The Public 
Employee Retirement System (PERS);  

 

WHEREAS, included in Senate Bill 125 in 2008 was language requiring municipalities to 
pay termination costs and “below the floor costs” on the termination of a 
department, group, or classification of employees;  

 
WHEREAS,  those lay-offs that are made up of a department, group, or classification will 

result in a charge to local governments for the actual study, followed by 
charges for each of those employee’s past service cost for approximately 30 
years;   

 

WHEREAS,  if the total base salary of any municipality falls below what it was in 2008 
(the year of SB 125), then charges will be assessed on that drop, as well; 

 

WHEREAS, these rules severely limit the ability of municipalities, including the City of 
Bethel, from being agile in the workplace, including eliminating no longer 
needed departments, groups, or classifications;  

 
WHEREAS,  these rules severely limit the ability of municipalities, including the City of 

Bethel, from creating new needed departments, groups, or classifications 
for fear of future termination studies and termination costs extending up to 
30 years in the future;   

 

WHEREAS,  municipalities, including the City of Bethel, require agility and adaptability in 
the workforce to meet our changing needs;  

 
WHEREAS,  with our current state fiscal crisis, municipalities, including the City of 

Bethel, may need to make reductions or increasing in the workforce 
including entire departments, groups, or classifications of employees; 

 
 
 
 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Resolution #16-07 
    1 of 2  
    

96



Introduced by: Mayor Robb 
Date: February 9, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 
WHEREAS,  the State of Alaska  is not subject to these rules as an employer, and the 

State of Alaska is making serious considerations to reducing its workforce.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED The City of Bethel supports reform in the 
Public Employee Retirement system. These reforms include eliminating termination 
studies and all costs for reducing or eliminating departments, groups, or classifications 
of employees, as well as not inhibiting future additions of departments, groups, or 
classifications of employees.  
 
 
 
ENACTED THIS __ DAY OF FEBRUARY 2016 BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR AND __ 
OPPOSED. 
 

___________________________  
   Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Resolution #16-07 
    2 of 2  
    

97



Introduced by: City Manager Capela 
Date: February 2, 2016 

Action:  
Vote:  

 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
 
 

Resolution # 16-08 

 
A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THAT THE MUNICIPALITY DID SUFFER 

SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS DURING THE PROGRAM BASE YEAR FROM FISHERIES 
BUSINESS ACTIVITIES THAT OCCURRED WITHIN THE FMA 6: LOWER 

KUSKOKWIM FISHERIES MANAGEMENT AREA 
 
 
WHEREAS, AS 29.60.450 requires that for a municipality to participate in the FY 16 Shared 

Fisheries Business Tax Program, the municipality must demonstrate to the 
Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development that the 
municipality suffered significant effects during calendar year 2014 from fisheries 
business activities;  

 
WHEREAS, 3 AAC 134.060 provides that if the allocation available for a fisheries management 

area is less than the long-form threshold value, a municipality may demonstrate that 
it suffered significant effects during the program base year from fisheries business 
activities that occurred within that fisheries management area through a resolution 
of the municipality’s governing body;   

 
WHEREAS, the City of Bethel is located within a fisheries management area with an allocation 

less than the long-from threshold value;  
 
WHEREAS, 3AAC 134.120 provides that this resolution satisfies the Short-Form Application 

resolution requirements under the FY 16 Shared Fisheries Business Tax Program;  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: the Bethel City Council, by this resolution 
certifies that the City of Bethel did suffer significant effects during calendar year 2014 from 
fisheries business activities that occurred within the within the FMA 6: Lower Kuskokwim 
fisheries management area and wishes to apply for funding under the FY 16 Shared Fisheries 
Business Tax Program.   
 
 
ENACTED THIS __ DAY OF FEBRUARY , BY A VOTE OF _ IN FAVOR AND _ OPPOSED.  
 

___________________________  
Richard Robb, Mayor  

 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Resolution # 16-08 
    1 of 1  
    

98



         City of Bethel Ordinance 15-14 (d) 

Introduced by:
Introduction Date:

Public Hearing: February 23, 2016
Action:

Vote:

Section 1.  That the following sums of money as may be needed or deemed necessary to provide for increased

Budget Modification 16-04 

Decrease
51-45-471 Water Sewer Subscription Fees, Designated to Capital Improvements (55,608)

Total Decrease (55,608)
Increase

10-86-669 Main Sewer Pump Station 55,608 
Total Increase 55,608 

TOTAL Net Change to IN KIND MATCH & TRANSFER 0 

Budget Modification 16-05 

Increases
40-50-669 Other Professional Services 35,000 

Total Increase 35,000 
Decreases

40-50-646 Contractor's Fee (35,000)
Total Decrease (35,000)

TOTAL Net Change to Water & Sewer Utility Revenues 0 

Change to Revenues  Increase/(Decrease)
TOTAL CHANGE TO OVERALL CITY BUDGET

An Ordinance of the Bethel City Council Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2016 Budget

Be it Enacted by the Bethel City Council that the FY 2016 Annual Budget be amended as follows:

Section 2.  The following is a summary of the changes by fund and department:

Water & Sewer Fund ( 51 )

expenses and liabilities of the City of Bethel are hereby appropriated for the corporate purposes and objects of the City hereinafter specified for 
Fiscal Year 2016, July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016.

Yukon Kuskokw im Regiona Health and Aquatic Saftety Training Center FUND ( 40 )

City Manager Capela
February 9, 2016

ORDINANCE #15-14 (d)

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA

99



 

 
   CITY OF BETHEL 
     Finance Director’s Office 

              P.O. Box 1388 
  Bethel, Alaska  99559 
  Ph. (907) 543-1376 
 Fax (907) 543-5294 

 

Memorandum 
To: Bethel City Council 

Cc: Ann K. Capela, City Manager 

From: Hansel L Mathlaw, Finance Director    

Date: February 2, 2016 

Re: Justifications for Budget Modification Request Water/Sewer Pump and ProDev 
Professional Services 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Listed below is an explanation for the budget modification requested in Ordinance # 15-14 
 
 
The following explains the two requests for City Council approval: 
 
WATER/SEWER PUMP 
Last fiscal year (FY15), The City Council approved Budget Ordinance #14-14 ( h ) for repair 
work to be perform on the Bethel Heights Water Treatment Plant and the Main Sewer Pump 
Station.  A pump was ordered in FY15, but was not delivered until FY16.  Because funds are 
not carried over to the next fiscal a new budget modifications needs to be approved before 
payment is released.  The source of funds will come from the Water Subscription Fees 
Designated to Capital Improvements. (Page 67 in the FY16 Budget) 
 
ProDEV Professional Services 
The reports submitted by United Pools reveal several line items underutilized.  To cover the 
$35,000 in Professional Services funds to will be moved from United Pools contractor’s fee 
to Other Professional Services 
 
  

 
 
 

 100



City of Bethel Action Memorandum 

Action memorandum No.  16-08 
Date action introduced: February 9, 2016 Introduced by:  Mayor Robb 
Date action taken: ▒ Approved    ▒  Denied 
Confirmed by: 

SUBJECT/ACTION: 

Approve Mayor’s appointment of Courtney Trammell to the Marijuana Advisory Committee. 

Route to:  Department/Individual: Initials: Remarks: 

Attachment(s): None 

Amount of fiscal 
impact 

Account information: 

X No fiscal impact 

Action memorandum 16-08 is sponsored by the Mayor at the request of the City Clerk. 

Courtney Trammel has requested appointment to the Marijuana Advisory Committee. If 
appointed, he would be appointed to a term of two years as an alternate member with 
a term expiration of January 1, 2017.  

The Marijuana Advisory Committee has two alternate seats available. 

AM No. 16-08 Page 1 

101



City of Bethel Action Memorandum 

Action memorandum No.  16-09 
Date action introduced: February 9, 2016 Introduced by:   Council Member Albertson 
Date action taken:  ▒ Approved                                              ▒  Denied 
Confirmed by:  
 
SUBJECT/ACTION: 

Direct Administration to create a budget modification to present to the Council by March 8, 
2016, to proceed with a fleet tracking system for ten city vehicles.    

Route to:  Department/Individual: Initials: Remarks: 
 City Manager Capela   
 Finance Director Mathlaw   
 Public Works Director Lakahni   
Attachment(s): GCI FleetTRAQ  

Amount of fiscal 
impact 

 Account information: 

X No fiscal impact  
 
With the fiscal situation the City of Bethel is facing, it is important that the fleet is being used as 
efficiently as possible. To ensure this is the case, the City should inspect the routes the utility 
trucks use to determine if there is a modification that can be made to improve the system.  

The fleet tracking system would keep track of the vehicle information such as real-time and 
historical location information, speed, MPG and mileage and any trouble codes for the vehicles.  

This information could be used to optimize fuel consumption, identify when a vehicle may need 
maintenance or repairs, as well as to provide the routes taken by the trucks to make sure they 
are financially efficient for the City’s utility services.  

In addition to the efficiency aspects for the vehicle and the drivers, the system would help in 
settling any false complaints or claims against the City that may arise. The location software 
can provide indubitably where a vehicle was at the time of any alleged offence and thus 
assisting with any dispute of a claim.  

With the intent of soon implementation, the council directs Administration to prepare a budget 
modification for the costs associated with start up and operation for the remainder of Fiscal 
Year 2016 as well as an action plan outlining what ten vehicles would be equipped with the 
system and how the Administration plans on monitoring and utilizing the data.  

In addition to the Fiscal Year 2016 allocation, Administration should plan on including this in the 
Fiscal Year 2017 budget with the understanding, the number of vehicles using the system may 
be expanded.  

AM No. 16-09 Page 1 
 

Not recommended

✔
✔
✔

           HM
           zef lakhani

Request to dalay for financial and tech research

Staff time and priorites of tasks for staff that will 
include but not limited to; IT, PW and Finance.

102



PAGE 1 OF 2

MANAGE YOUR VEHICLES IN REAL TIME FOR JUST $12.99 PER VEHICLE

GCI FleetTRAQ provides real-time vehicle information that 
helps streamline operations, lower cost, and reduce risk. 
Easily monitor the location, status, and condition of your 
vehicles from your computer or smartphone.

POWERFUL TRACKING FOR BUSINESSES OF ALL SIZES BACKED BY OUTSTANDING SUPPORT

With GCI FleetTRAQ you can 
track basic vehicle info, such as 
VIN#, ID#, make, model, and year. 
Gather real-time and historical 
location information like speed, 
MPG, and mileage—plus engine 
idle time and trouble codes. 

Businesses large and small use 
GCI FleetTRAQ to manage 
anything from one vehicle to an 
entire fleet. Businesses include 
landscaping companies, real 
estate agents, courier companies, 
independent contractors, HVAC 
companies, and more.

GCI FleetTRAQ includes full 
24/7/365 dedicated business 
technical support, based right here 
in Alaska. Plus, we can provide 
hands-on training to get your fleet 
managers and dispatchers up and 
running quickly.

HERE'S HOW IT WORKS

GCI FleetTRAQ collects and sends vital information about your vehicles using a small device that’s easy to 
install. All you need is a simple plug-in connection to an on-board diagnostics (OBD) port, which is standard 
in most vehicles. Vehicle information arrives to you in an easy-to-read format that you can quickly access 
from a computer or smartphone.

v110315

Get in Touch and Learn More
907.265.5454  |  800.800.7754  |  business@gci.com  |  gci.com/business

Your Business Technology Partner

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION - AM 16-09

103



PAGE 2 OF 2

JUST $12.99 A MONTH PER VEHICLE

GCI FleetTRAQ requires a one-time equipment purchase fee. All products require a GCI wireless data plan.

PLUG AND PLAY SETUP, ALONG WITH FULL TRAINING

DEVICE SPECIFICATIONS

STREAMLINE OPERATIONS, INCREASE VISIBILITY

The GCI FleetTRAQ device plugs into the diagnostic port of your vehicle using a standard OBD-II 
connection. From there, we will connect your fleet to the easy-to-use portal that you can access from 
a computer or smartphone. We can also help you set up automated reports that provide you with the 
critical information you need to manage your fleet.

•  Get your workforce to the right place at the 
right time.

•  Optimize fuel consumption and time spent  
in transit.

•  Track mileage for taxes and other reporting.
•  Receive alerts for events like excessive speed 

and engine trouble.
•  Know when your vehicles come and go with 

assigned destinations.

Xirgo Technologies XT-2000 Series Device

WIRELESS

•  3G UMTS/HSDPA 

•  2G GPRS

•  Integrated Wireless Antenna

PHYSICAL

•  OBD-II Connector (J1962)

•  Integrated GPS Antenna

•  Dimensions – 1.8” x 1.5” x 1”

•  Weight – <2 oz.

•  Operating Temp – 70°C to -30°C

•  DC Power – 6-18V
  -  30mA average @12V

SUPPORTED OBD PROTOCOLS

•  J1850 PWM

•  J1850 VPW

•  ISO-9141-2

•  ISO-14230 KWP2000

•  ISO-15765 CAN

•  Provide police with location data in the event  
of vehicle theft.

•  Collect data that can help dispute complaints, 
claims, or litigation.

•  Identify when vehicles may need maintenance 
or repairs.

Get in Touch and Learn More
907.265.5454  |  800.800.7754  |  business@gci.com  |  gci.com/business

Your Business Technology Partner
v110315

104



-10
February 9, 2016

-10

105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



 

AM 16-12: Approving The Contract With ProDev For 
Request For Proposal  For The Management Of The 

Pool Facility will be emailed to the Council and 
provided on the City of Bethel website 

www.cityofbethel.org, when the document is 
available. The contract is included in the packet.  

119

http://www.cityofbethel.org/


120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



 

Mayor’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

154



 

City Manager’s Report 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

155



 

M E M O R A N D U M            

 

 

From: Ann K. Capela, City Manager 
To: Mayor, Vice Mayor and Council  
Cc: City Attorney, City Clerk 
Date: February 2, 2016 
Re: City Manager’s Report 
 
 
1. FY 2016/17 Budget preparation – The DRAFT budget preparation schedule has been issued to all City  
 Departments including the YK Pool facility. City Council will have the opportunity to schedule public  
 hearings FY 2016/17 budget at the February 23, 2016 Council meetings.  
 
2. FY 2014/15 Audit – Is incomplete at this time. We anticipate that the CPA firm of Carmen Jackson will 
 ease the workload of the understaffed Finance Department, which will allow the Finance Director 
 to complete the information for the audit firm Altman Rogers. We have also determined (after much  
 discussion with Carmen Jackson, CPA that her firm is not able to audit the merchant sales tax as 
 envisioned due to complex accounting regulations. Ms. Jackson is unable to work for the City  
 internally and then perform an “attestation” or an audit on the same revenue. Ms. Jackson is  
 conferring on this matter with the City’s current Auditor Altman Rogers.   
 
3. Police Department – Still continues to experience staff shortage and has been in this mode for the  
 last 12 to 14 months. Chief Achee continues to recruit locally. Developing local law  
 enforcement can take up to 2 or 3 years. The Police Department has developed plans to close out the 
 911 communication grant project. The granting agency has agreed to give the City a one year  
 extension (building a communication tower and completing the 911 enhanced system).  
 
4. YK Pool Facility – Financial Audit: completed one audit. This sample has been forwarded to 
 United Pool Management to respond. Untied Pool is looking at the audit.  We are moving forward   
 with this project.  
 
  YK Pool Facility operational issues: The Pool is still experiencing fluctuations in pool water  
 temperature.  For a few days the water temperature go up to 82 F and then just dropped over  
 night.  United Pool with assistance from me, have hired Long Building technical expertise to  
 conduct the electronic systems audit.  I expect Long Building to submit a report of their finding. 
 According to ProDev, the pool requires two types of tech expertise. We will be working with ProDev  
 to identify the next steps for operational audit of the pool facility.  
 
5. Donlin Gold Project – US CORPS of Eng. held a public meeting and a Public Hearing on February 1,  
 2016. The hearing was well attended. As the City Manager and Emergency Incident Commander for  

1 

 

156



 the City, myself along with the Fire Chief,  will be submitting written comments regarding emergency    
 planning. The CORPS does not address, nor is the Homeland Security as part of inter-agency 
 consultation process, to determine what is a reasonable plan for safety and security for the 
 transportation and storage at the Bethel dock yard for mercury, cyanide, explosives and other 
 dangerous material. City of Bethel, by jurisdiction, is the first responder agency in Bethel. Bethel 
 Fire Department and Bethel Police Department will have to respond to fires, accidents to people 
 and structures. An emergency plan must be part of mitigation requirements.   
  
 Recommendation I - It is my recommendation that Bethel City Council establish an ad hoc committee 
 to formulate a response to this EIS from the City’s perspective. The Mitigation of the current  EIS 
 statement does not address any transport and storage impact in the City of Bethel.  
 
 Recommendation II - The City Council should also consider retaining a planning firm (currently an 
 approved vendor) who has the capability to issue such a report. It is not unusual for a community to 
 retain an independent firm to assist the City in formulating a respond to an EIS. 
   
6. The City has not been able to complete the Lease Agreement for the Teen Center with U of A 4H. 
    
7. Public Works – Has been able to hire water and sewer truck drivers. 
 
 As City Manager, I have assessed that the City water delivery and sewer treatment system is at a high 
 risk of failure. The current transportation and transmission of water and sewer is failing. Sterling 
 trucks that are the core system of potable water delivery are old and Sterling is out of production. 
 Even Sterling truck parts are no longer being produced. The parts for the Sterling trucks are very 
 difficult to obtain. Often these parts must be specially made. To rely on delivery of essential 
 services on outdated equipment is not advisable. In the past, when the City needed water or 
 sewer trucks, the City applied to the State of Alaska for capital funding and trucks were purchased. 
 The State of Alaska grappling with a $3.8 billion deficit – local governments will not be able to reach 
 the necessary funding from the State of Alaska.  
  
 Wastewater processing/treatment (Lagoon) – To this date, I have been informed via email by the  
 State of Alaska (Bill Griffith) that the City of Bethel will need to apply for $150,000 planning study (to 
 prepare plans) on the work and material that will dredge the existing lagoon. At this time the State 
 is promising about $4 Million towards the dredging of the lagoon. The City and the State anticipate 
 that we can close the financing on this by the end of March this year. The City already constructed 
 a road around the first lagoon cell. This plan is the first step in what may be a “phased” approach to  
 address the wastewater treatment process in Bethel. Once this first phase is completed, the State will 
 conduct testing to EPA waste water discharge standards.   
 
 The “jetty” (truck dump site) has been evaluated to need close to $3 Million dollars. The City has 
 an existing “pot” of funds of $650,000 toward the jetty. USDA is willing to fund some with a grant 
 but at least 40% of this should be funded by the City of Bethel (a match).  The City administration is  
 discussing with USDA the possibility of a low cost 20-40 year loan from USDA. I have discussed with  
 the City’s lobbyist to seek possible legislation to set up State Revolving Loan Fund to enable small 
 cities in Alaska could borrow funds at low interest rates to build local water, sewer and road 
 infrastructure.  

2 

 

157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



 

 
 

Management Team Reports 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

182



 
 
To:  Ann Capela, City Manager 
From:  Ted Meyer, Planner 
Subject: January 2016 Activity Report 
Date:   Jan 29, 2016 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Right-of-Way Issue 
 
I met with the Moravian Church Board on Jan 6.  Their concern regards the boardwalk on their land behind the 
church buildings off of Third Street.  The boardwalk is located inside a 50-foot ROW which borders Mission 
Lake.  An eight-foot portion of the boardwalk is in disrepair.  There were complaints of 4-wheeler noise during 
the middle of the night, and of   intoxicated people using the boardwalk.  Board members were concerned about 
the church’s liability.  We discussed two potential alternatives: 
 

1. This would be a cooperative effort between the Church and the City.  COB Public Works stated they 
could repair the eight-foot section in the spring.  The Church would fence in the entire parameter of their 
property except for both end points of the existing ROW.  Public Works may also put in obstacles to 
block 4-wheeler traffic, but not pedestrians.   

2. The Church submits a request to have the ROW vacated if Alternative #1 fails. 
 
The Church’s next board meeting is in April, 2016.  Public Works indicated they would attend. 
 
Conditional Use Permit  
 

• Planning, developed a new CUP (Conditional Use Permit) application with excellent input from the City 
Clerk, Legal and City Manager’s office.  

 
• Planning Department received two CUP’s (Conditional Use Permit) applications using the new forms 

from BNC (Bethel Native Corporation) and Fili’s Restaurant for site location approval to begin liquor 
sales.   

• Researched compliance with the BMC and developed a fact of findings and recommendations for both.   
 
Planning Department worked to prepare packet for Special Planning Commission Meeting to be held on Feb 2, 
2016.  There was great teamwork by all involved. 
 
Hospital Extension Project 
 

• Spoke with Derek Yvonne from YKHC Site Plan Permit application regarding their upcoming project.  
I’ll meet with Diana Latham from YKHC Feb 3, 2016 as well. 

 
ROW Vacation 
 

• Working with a potential ROW vacation with Farpoint Land Services on YKHC property in association 
with the upcoming hospital extension project. 

 
GCI Property Lease with City at Watson Corner 
 
Ordered and received a title report for the property.  Contacted McClintock Land Associates (surveyor of record 
for associated USS 3230 Subdivision) for an As-built survey.  Will follow up with an appraisal. 

183



MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  February 1, 2016 
 
TO:  Ann K. Capela, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John Sargent, Grant Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Grant Manager’s Report – February 9, 2016 Bethel City Council Meeting 
 
 
 
Grant Applications 
State Homeland Security Program 
I am gathering information to prepare and submit an FY 2016 State Homeland Security 
Program grant application by the February 19, 2016 deadline. The City will submit the following 
five projects: (1) Radios – portable and mobile, (2) videocameras and related servers, (3) body 
cameras, (4) foam fire extinguishers, and (5) portable light banks. The value of the projects is 
expected to be $207,000. 
 
Bethel Truck Dump Site 
The City of Bethel was informally presented the ratio of 45% grant and 55% loan funding to 
cover the costs associated with the replacement of the truck dump site at the sewage lagoon. 
The project is expected to cost $3,000,000. The City can provide about $650,000 in match 
toward the project from its State of Alaska Designated Legislative Grant to replace the truck 
dump site. The City needs to come up with approximately $1,000,000 in match funds or borrow 
it from USDA-RD at the low rate of about 2.25% per annum. 
 
Sewage Lagoon Rehabilitation 
The City is pursuing funding for dredging, baffle replacement, berm repair, and other small 
improvements from EPA and the State Department of Environmental Conservation. The amount 
of funding available at present is about $4,400,000. The City will first receive $150,000 grant in 
order to pay for pre-construction activities (engineering, permitting, business plan). Once the 
pre-construction documents are completed, the City will be eligible to receive the large capital 
amount.  
 
RFBs and RFPs 
Glycol 
The review committee selected the lowest bid submitted. An Action Memorandum was prepared 
for City Council approval on February 9, 2016. 
 
Project Manager for Port Office 
The review committee scored the four proposals submitted and selected the proposals with the 
highest score for award. The Purchasing Agent concurred and an Action Memorandum was 
prepared for council approval on February 9, 2016.   
 
 
 
 
 

 1 
184



 
 

City of Bethel 
Grant Summary 

Calendar Year 2015-16 
  

Preparing 
 
 
Sponsor 

 
 
Name 

 
 
Products/Services 

City 
Depts. 
(Partners) 

 
 

Date 

 
 $ Grant 

$ City Match 
AK Division of 
Homeland Security 
and Emerg. Mgmt. 

State 
Homeland 
Security Grant 

Radios, video 
cameras, body 
cameras, foam 
extinguisher, light 
banks.  

Police 
Fire 
Public 
Works 
Port 

2/19/16 $207,000 
0 

Alaska Public 
Entity Insurance 

Grant Playground surface 
material 

Parks & 
Rec. 

Feb. 
2015 

$10,000 
 

Alaska Public 
Entity Insurance 

Grant Safety 
equipment/supplies 

Public 
Works 

Feb. 
2015 

$1,000 
0 

Submitted in Calendar Year 2015 Most recent first 

Sponsor Name Products/Services 
City 
Depts. Date 

 $ Grant 
$ Match 

Alaska Dept. of 
Transportation and 
Public Facilities 

SFY 2017 AK 
Community 
Transportation 
Grant 

Transit operations and 
admin. 

PW-
Transit 

12/11/15 $331,177 
$80,580 

Total $331,177 
 

 2 
185



 

             CITY OF BETHEL     William F. Howell III, Fire Chief  

                             Fire Department                            P.O. Box 1388, Bethel, Alaska 99559  
                              Phone: (907)-543-2131 

                  Fax: (907)-543-2702  
                                                                     bhowell@cityofbethel.net 

    
 

Celebrating 50 Years of Service 
       

 
    

DATE:  February 2, 2016 
            

TO:  Ann Capella, City Manager 
 
FROM: Bill Howell, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: January 2016 Management Report  
 
 
Current Events 

 
 January was marked by our biannual EMT 2-3 recertification and initial classes 

January 4th through the 15th.  There were six initial EMT-2 and nine EMT-3 
students.  State of Alaska EMT Practical Skills and Written examinations were 
held on 01/16/16. Two individuals will be completing the EMT-2 written 
examination later this week. 

 The Department reviewed and provided written statements to the Manager 
regarding two separate applications for alcohol sales.  Feedback was provided in 
compliance with Bethel Municipal Code. 
 

 The Department is working with the Public Safety Commission to make 
recommendations to the Council regarding staffing shortages in both public 
safety departments. 

 
Emergency Planning/Homeland Security 
 

 The Department attended the monthly Homeland Security Training and 
Education teleconference on January 6th. 
 

 The Department is working with local businesses, commercial and industrial 
property owners to develop fire emergency plans.  
 

Training 
 

 An EMT Meeting was held at the Fire Department on 01/19/16 at 7 PM. 
Responders practiced medical and trauma patient assessments and performed 
interventions applicable to their EMT skill levels. 

186



 

 A Fire Meeting was held on 01/28/16 at 7PM. Responders reviewed Ice/Water 
Rescue procedures and equipment, then conducted practice rescue evolutions at 
the Small Boat Harbor. 

 The Department is coordinating with the Firefighter-1 students who need 
refresher training in order to take the State of Alaska Firefighter-1 and Hazardous 
Materials Awareness/Operations written examinations. 

Responses 
 

 The Bethel Fire Department responded to 91 EMS and 5 Fire incidents during 
the month of December.   
 

 On 01/11/16 at 12:06 p.m. medics responded to the area of Ptarmigan Road for 
the report of a person on drugs. The patient was assessed and transported to the 
hospital. 
 

 On 01/21/16 at 1:32 a.m. medics responded to Chief Eddie Hoffman Highway for 
a report of a person hallucinating. The patient was assessed and transported to 
the hospital. 
 

 On 01/22/16 at 7:28 a.m. medics responded to Ptarmigan Road for the report of 
vehicle accident involving a snowmobile. Upon arrival, two severely injured 
patients were assessed and transported to the hospital. 
 

 On 01/06/16 at 10:55 p.m. firefighters responded to the Malone Home for a 
report of fire alarm activation.  Upon arrival, the alarm was determined to be 
false. 
 

 On 01/29/16 at 11:30 firefighters responded to the area of Alder Street for the 
report of a house filled with smoke.  Upon arrival, firefighters determined the 
smoke was from unattended cooking. The home was ventilated and firefighters 
returned to quarters. 

Vehicles & Equipment 
 

 Due to short staffing, the V& E department cleared M5 to go out to a public 
sector shop for engine repairs. 
 

 A new vinyl floor was installed in the patient compartment of Medic-4.   
 

 We are working with administration to insure all Fire Department 
vehicles/equipment at their replacement value. 
 

 A work order has been put in to V&E to repair stuck valves and leaking pump 
packing’s on E-3. 
 

187



 

Budget/Financial  
 

 The Department is operating within FY16 budget guidelines. 
 

 Callback overtime is at 80%, with only 58% of the budget year elapsed.  Record 
call volume and the new three hour minimum are contributing to this overage.   
 

 Unanticipated costs for Ladder truck testing and Asbestos training following the 
Kilbuck Fire from our purchased services account is a point of concern.  We will 
be closely watching this fund. 

 
 
Grants  
 

 All Grants are operating within allotted timelines. 
 

 The Department is applying for funding through the 2015 FEMA Assistance to 
Firefighters Grant Program.  We seek funding to replaces aged turnout gear and 
fire hose.  This application was submitted on time.  The project requested is 
budgeted at est. 130,000 dollars and requires a 5% match.  Funding 
announcements are normally made in September of the following year. 

 

 Reimbursement requests were made for federal cost share under the 2013 
FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant for Self Contained Breathing Apparatus.    
The City received final payment of $97,385 and will be filing final closeout reports 
when due. 
 

 The Department has identified funding opportunities for federal fire prevention 
grants expected to open in April of 2016.  The Department will seek to hire a 
consultant to assist with development of a comprehensive emergency planning 
and annual inspections program. 
 

 Final Purchases are being made with excess funds under the Alaska Volunteer 
Fire Assistance (VFA) grant program.  We will file close out reports once 
purchases are complete. 
 

 Quotes were provided to the Grants Manager to apply for funding for new 
portable radios through the Homeland Security grant. 
 

Staffing/recruitment 

 All positions are filled minus our FY 15 defunded FF/EMT position 
 

 The Department is drafting a hiring list for future vacancies and new positions.  
 

 
 

 

188



 
  
     
                                                                             
 

Memorandum 

DATE:  February 1, 2016 
 
TO:  Ann K Capela, City Manager 
 
FROM: Hansel L Mathlaw, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT: Manager’s Report – February 2016 
 
Finance Committee 
 
The committee convened on January 25, 2016.  The election of Chair and Vice-Chair was 
tabled until the next meeting.  The other topic that was discussed was cost savings to the 
City.  This was a brain storming session.  Some items included: replacing some widows at 
the pool with insulated walls, leasing vehicles versus purchasing, attaching GPS trackers on 
vehicles.  I mentioned that the City received a 3% discount (FY2016) on its workers 
compensation insurance because the PW department conducted safety meetings throughout 
FY15.  I believe good ideas were presented by members, but it was mentions to focus on one 
item at a time do it very well then go on to the next item.   
   
Finance Department 
 
After months, I have hired a General Ledger Accountant.  His first day is February 8, 2016.  
The Sales Tax Specialist last was January 8, 2016.  The Sales Tax Specialist is open until 
filled.   
 
 
 
Finance Budget 
 
Because of the departure of the General Ledger Accountant several budget line items are five 
months behind.  The newly hired GL Accountants first day is February 8, 2016.  I expect the 
GL to be up to date on February 26.  
 
 The CM has department directors focusing on the FY17 budget.  The due date for 
Administration is April 1, 2016.  The budget and CM message will be delivered to city 
council on April 1, 2016.  
 

 189



MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:        02/01/2016 
TO:   Ann Capela, City Manager 
FROM:  Muzaffar Lakhani, Public Works Director 
SUBJECT:  Management Report 
 
Programs/Divisions 
 
Utility Maintenance: 
This month we have had a few frozen sewer lines at Bethel Heights. We met with 
Alaska Housing about their sewer line issues in Bethel Heights. Sarah from 
ARWA has made a site visit at our request to take a look at our chemical dosage; 
she also helped us with our updated information for DEC. After adding the 
anthracite to the filter at CSWTP the quality of the water has improved a lot, and 
the efficiency of the filters in 90% to 92% range. 
Hauled Utilities: For December and January.  I was on vacation for the second 
half of December, and the first half of January. When I returned, there was 
a loss of a truck, and driver, due to an accident/ rollover on Dec 23rd 2015. And the 
loss, of at least one senior driver who resigned, and also a mechanic resigned. I 
believe we will have all of it under control by Monday the first of February. 
In December the water driver delivered 3.3 million gallons of water, the sewer dept 
hauled 2.6 million gallons of sewage, and the garbage truck hauled approximately 
3300 cubic yards of trash to the dump. 
For January, the water drivers have hauled 3,500,000 gallons of water, the sewer 
drivers have hauled nearly the same in an attempt to catch up for the shortage of 
trucks and manpower over the past 4-5 weeks. And the garbage truck has hauled  
over 3000 cubic yards of trash to the dump.  
We hired one Water/Sewer Driver position during the last couple of weeks and are 
anticipating the hiring of at least 2 new drivers, possibly three next week. This will 
complete all the open Drivers positions in the Hauled Water/Sewer Division. 
 
Property Maintenance: 
   We are on our routine winter maintenance schedule on all our buildings and 
facilities. We check for heat, plumbing, electrical issues and repair/replace what is 
necessary. We take care of snow removal if any and spread sand and de-icer as 
needed to minimize slips and falls on decks/stairs and landing areas. Some days 
brings us some unexpected problems when we do our checks. 
   We have been ordering and replacing outdated light fixtures and lamps with 
L.E.D. upgrades. This should help reduce our electrical costs in the short term as  

1 
 

190



well as cut down on the maintenance and replacements in the long term. We had a 
break-in at the Log Cabin mostly vandalism repairs have been made. I have been 
putting some thoughts and projects together as I am thinking about the budget 
when we start. One of these items is we need to have a plan for what to do with the 
deteriorating shop walls here at Public Works. A plan of action needs to be 
developed for replacement. We really need to begin discussing this on the next 
level on where we go from here with this. This is way beyond any normal 
maintenance repairs. Thank you. 
 
Parks and Recreation: We have been working on setting up a July 4th committee 
but are meeting a lot of resistance; we continue to work on it. We are ordering 
supplies for the coming season. Three Log Cabin rentals this month. Log cabin was 
broken into, nothing was taken. There was some damage to the door but all repairs 
have been made. I’m currently working on my Certified Playground Safety 
Inspector’s certification.   
 
Road Maintenance: 
Streets and Roads hauled out the Cat 324E excavator to the city sand pit so that we 
can dig into the pile we push up this fall with the D8 dozer. Being the sand pile is 
dry the permafrost is only a little over 1 foot thick, so digging it is easy. So we will 
keep hauling to the land fill pile as we have time, this helps out by keeping the 
working faces cover, and also to have a pile to be used next spring to cover the 
land fill.   
Streets and Roads, has been helping the public out, by using the 420 Cat backhoe 
to dig graves at the new cemetery, civilian and/or military side. The power 
company would drill it first through the permafrost with the earth auger and then 
we would use the backhoe to dig it out.         
Streets and Roads during the Kuskokwim 300 dog race used the grader to scarify 
the ice on River Front Street, and also the places where the public park, to watch 
the dog races or the K300 fireworks show. After scarifying we sanded those areas 
along with the approaches of the Kuskokwim River.      
Streets and Roads have spent a lot of time this month scarifying and sanding the 
roads to keep it from being slippery. The crew started their shifts earlier in the 
morning to get this done before the general traffic runs and the school buses start 
their routes.     
 
Vehicles and Equipment: For the V&E dept, with the loss of one mechanic the 
rest of the crew has had a difficult time keeping up with all the breakdowns. I 
believe they should be able to catch up sometime in February. We have several 
trucks which are waiting on parts, and a truck which is waiting on an out of town 

2 
 

191



mechanic, to be rebuilt. We also have several pieces of heavy equipment that need 
attention which should also be caught up with hopefully by the end of February. 
 
Transit System: The month of January has been a slow month in regards to 
ridership.  The warm weather, people are walking, and following the holiday 
season money is tight.  Hopefully the ridership will pick up in the month of 
February.  Every morning, 6:40am, we are picking up 7-12 homeless passengers at 
Uivuq Subdivision who are staying at the Salvation Army night shelter and they 
are dropped off at the hospital.  Currently this is a community service and there is 
no charge.  Our elder ridership is steady and account for about 30 to 35 percent of 
our ridership. 
John Sargent, City Grant Manager, is still working on the RFPs for the new buses 
and Bus Stop Shelters.  I’m very concerned that we might lose the grants if the 
RFPs aren’t finished and out on the street soon.  I hope John will be able to get 
them out and back by the end of February as it’ll take the bus company 4-6 
months to assemble the buses and get them on this summer barge.  The new bus 
(#439), we got in October of 2014 already has over 40,000 miles on it and it will 
start needing replacement parts soon.  Bus 438 has over 100,000 miles on it and is 
starting to use a quart of oil every couple of weeks.  Our other two diesel buses, 
436 and 437, are used for stand by only.  Bus 436 in the City Shop waiting for 
parts to replace the gears in the rear axle.   
We are currently recruiting for a Part-Time and an On-Call driver but there are few 
applicants.  Our current part-time driver will be leaving the mid part of March.  We 
haven’t had an On-Call driver and I’ve been filling in when necessary.   
Bethel Transit System goal for the FY 2017 will be to show a 15-20 percent 
increase in ridership / revenue.  I think we can do this by providing better and 
more dependable / reliable service for our passengers. 
  
Landfill: 
This last month a couple of guys from Streets and Roads have hauled a lot of cover 
sand to our cover pile at the Landfill, plus they have brought more so we can begin 
to cover the dumpster trash, so that we can make and maintain a smaller cell of 
trash that is exposed.  This cuts down on windblown trash that finds its way to the 
tundra. Starting in the spring this trash will be covered once a week, so that we can 
be in accordance to our landfill permit requirements. 
  
 
   
 

3 
 

192



PORT OF BETHEL 
Post Office Box 1388 
Bethel, Alaska 99559 
Voice: 907-543-2310 
Fax:    907-543-2311 

   
TO:                Ann Capela 

FROM: Peter A. Williams- Port Director 

SUBJECT: January, 2016 Managers Report  

                         
PORT ADMINISTRATION ACTION ITEMS AND ACTIVITIES 

  
• SMALL BOAT HARBOR- Fifty cu.yds of rip-rap was put into place for the Access Rd. and more will be 

added as weather permits.  A abandon vehicle was impound procedures were followed to remove it from the 
SBH.  
 

• Port Shop-251 East Ave; Lights and heater purchased completing the materials needed for the electricians. 
The funds for installation of the materials will have to be approved of by Council either by a budget mod, 
perhaps in late Feb., or in the FY17 budget. 

 
• BBSP -Jung/Active Parcels-No progress to report. 
•  
• City Dock- AMLs’ southbound wharfage charges for 2015 were reconciled.  Connex’s being prepared for 

use as a temporary Port Office. Impound procedures initiated two pieces of lost/abandon freight.  
 

• Port Office-A company was chosen to manage the relocation of the old office and for the design/ build of a 
new office. Contract and AM is being readied for the City Councils review on Feb.8th. 
 

• Oscar Way/251 East Ave/City Dock Warehouse –Affiliated Appraisals completed the building 
assessments with the fair market values of the monthly rental fees of these properties. 
 

• Sand Shed- The insulation that was installed has had a positive effect. Port Attendants are able to bring the 
temperature up so they are able to work inside. They are assembling portable toilets and floats. 
 

• BMC-Chapter 14/Terminal Tariff – Editing is continuing. Port Commission was unable to review the work 
completed in January due to a lack of a quorum. Our next meeting is February 15th. 
 

• Budget- Will be submitted on schedule. Working with the Finance Director to update Expenditures and 
Revenues.  
 

• Personnel- Port Attendants have completed the Haz. Comm. training and are working certificates for 
handling hazardous materials. Everyone has taken a winter vacation. The Admin Assistant is keeping up with 
the billing. The Port Attendants are still bring the bank deposits to the bank ,mail run and picking up the coins 
from the pump hose in housing. 
 
 Peter Williams 
 Port Director 

 

193



CITY OF BETHEL 
Post Office Box 1388  
Bethel, Alaska  99559 
Phone: 907- 543- 2047 
 

 
 

TO:  City Manager 
FROM:  Human Resources 
SUBJECT: January 2016 Manager Report 
 
DATE:  January 18, 2016 
 
Position Descriptions:  
Currently working on reorganizing specific job functions into classes that represent our PERS 
liability and will be re-working formal job descriptions to reflect the skills needed for that class - 
ensuring that the City is not inadvertently creating new classes within PERS unnecessarily. This 
may also assist in strengthening the available workforce and organizational structure in certain 
departments, such as Finance, Public Safety, or V&E. 
 
Training: 
Researching opportunities to either obtain HR certification or advanced training in specific HR 
concentration areas as identified by the City Manager in most recent evaluation.  
 
Benefits: 
Short Term Disability Claim form and basic information has been uploaded to shared drive for 
employee/supervisor access. Working with the Wilson Agency on materials to communicate 
specifics and how short-term disability relates (or doesn’t) to sick leave, workers compensation, 
FMLA/AFLA, PTO, and long-term disability. 
 
Caselle has uploaded all employee information necessary for the City to complete our ACA-
required end-of-year reporting. The data included dependent data for all covered employees as 
well as specifics related to our plan. 
 
Drug and Alcohol Review Responses: 
Continuing to refine in-house processes and better define federal/state mandates vs. our 
insurance requirements or in-house risk mitigation practices. This review will continue. 
 
Policies and Procedures: 
Created a shared folder in which to consolidate all active policies from the Departments. Will 
review and develop into a shared reference manual for all staff. 
 
OSHA: 
Completed and distributed 2015 OSHA form 300a, which must be displayed by law from Feb 1 
until April 1 of any given year. All Departments to post in their respective public areas. 
 

“Deep Sea and Transportation Center of the Kuskokwim” 194



 

City Clerk’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

195



      City of Bethel, Alaska 
City Clerk’s Office 

 
Council Meetings and Events 
February 23, 2016 Regular City Council meeting  
March 8, 2016 Regular City Council Meeting  
 
Liquor License Applications 
Fili’s Pizza Restaurant, License #5445, Restaurant and Eating Place License 
Application. The City Clerk’s Office received notice of this license application on 
January 5, 2016. Notice was immediately provided to Administration. If the 
Council chooses to protest this application, the protest must be received by the 
Alcohol Beverage Control Board by March 5, 2016.  
 
Bethel Spirit’s License # 5447, Package Store License Application. The City 
Clerk’s Office received notice of this license application on January 15, 2016. 
Notice was immediately provided to Administration. If the Council chooses to 
protest this application, the protest must be received by the Alcohol Beverage 
Control Board by March 15, 2016.  
 
Electronic Cemetery Records 
After a full year of data entry, the electronic cemetery module is complete and 
up to date with all of the Bethel Memorial Cemetery Information. We will begin 
to scan the records in as support to the electronic files and update the fields with 
payment information.  
 
Research/Document Preparation 
• The Office is researching and preparing to draft an Ordinance for by mail 

elections. The Office did not received  requests from the department heads to 
modify the fee and rate schedule so the City Clerk will not be preparing a fee 
and rate schedule modification for the Council to consider.  

• When time permits, the Office is reviewing the must updated modifications to 
the proposed State marijuana regulations as well as the City’s property 
ownership.  

• When time permits, the Office is working through the City owned property 
transfers/leases with the hope to get a comprehensive outline of City owned 
land.  

• The City Clerk began the review of the Donlin Gold EIS, this review will 
continue as time will allow.  

 
 

  

1 of 2  

 
196



 

Additional Information  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

197


	Approval of the Meeting Minutes
	January 19, 2016 Meeting Minutes 
	January 26m 2016 Meeting Minutes 

	Reports of Standing Committees
	Untitled
	Special Order of Business
	Unfinished Business
	Ordinance 15-21
	Ordinance 15-14 (c)
	Ordinance 16-02
	Wind Turbine Maintenance Contract

	New Business
	Resolution 16-04
	Resolution 16-05
	Resolution 16-06
	Resolution 16-07
	Resolution 16-08
	Ordinance 15-14 d
	AM 16-08
	AM 16-09
	AM 16-10
	AM 16-11
	AM 16-12
	Bethel Spirits Liquor License
	Fili's Liquor License

	Mayor’s Report
	City Manager’s Report
	Management Team Reports
	City Clerk’s Report



